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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest

only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any

part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”] of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”] collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year”) to our
shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group continues to focus on movie
production, licensing and derivatives, crossover marketing and
provision of interactive contents (“Filmed Entertainment, New
Media Exploitations and Licensing Businesses”) and cinema
investment and management (“Cinema Business”).

In view of the on-going development of the Cinema Business,
this segment has become the prime revenue generator of the
Group in the Year. Approximately revenue of HK$46.9 million
and gross profit of HK$27.6 million were generated during the
Year. The revenue and gross profit for the Year maintained
steady, as compared to revenue of HK$44.8 million and gross
profit of HK$26.0 million generated in last year. The Group will
implement various measures to focus on expanding the
audience headcount and improve the financial performance of
the Cinema Business accordingly.

In the segment of Filmed Entertainment Business, the Group
continued to locate suitable business opportunities. However,
no appropriate target was spotted in the Year. Accordingly, no
revenue was generated in this sector during the Year.

On 9 February 2018, Bingo Movie Development Limited (“Bingo
Movie”),
Lechuang Holdings (HK) Limited (“Lechuang”), an independent

a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and

third party, entered into an agreement (the “JV Agreement”) in
relation to the formation of the joint venture company (“‘JV
Company”). The issued share capital of the JV Company will be
owned as to 49% by Bingo Movie and as to 51% by Lechuang.
The JV Company will be principally engaged in investment and
development of VR (Virtual Reality) and MR (Mixed Reality)
projects. Pursuant to the JV Agreement, Bingo Movie will enter
into of a loan agreement with the JV Company, pursuant to
which Bingo Movie will advance the loan of not less than
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

HK$25,000,000 and not more than HK$35,000,000 to the
JV Company for investment and development of relevant VR
and MR projects. For further details, please refer to the
corresponding announcement of the Company dated 9 February
2018.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately HK$47.9 million, representing a slight increase
of approximately 6.0% as compared with HK$45.2 million for
last year. The HK$47.9 million turnover for the Year (2017:
HK$45.2 million) mainly consisted of the gross revenue of the
Cinema Business of HK$46.9 million (2017: HK$44.8 million).

The increase in other revenue and income is principally due to (i)
exchange gain of approximately HK$2.6 million recognized
during the Year, while exchange loss of approximately HK$2.0
million, which was included in administrative expenses, was
recorded in last year, (ii) gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$2.1 million (2017: Nil), and (iii) increase in
income from termination of PRC cinema investment contracts
from approximately HK$0.2 million in last year to approximately
HK$2.7 million during the Year.

There was no material change in the Group’s expenses for the
Year as compared to those for fiscal year 2016,/17, except for
the non-cash share-based payments not provided for the Year.
Share-based payments of approximately HK$35.2 million was
recognised in the year ended 31 March 2017.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$145.9 million (2017: HK$196.8 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$36.0
million (2017: HK$125.0 million). There was no pledged bank
deposit as at 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil). As at 31 March
2018, the debt ratio (defined as total liabilities/total assets)
was approximately 0.28 (2017: 0.43).
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

Both the Group’s total assets and liabilities slightly decreased
over the Year. The Group continued to hold strong cash and
cash equivalents as at 31 March 2018 and the Board believes
that the Group has sufficient resources to satisfy its working
capital requirements. During the Year, the Group financed its
operations with its own working capital. As at 31 March 2018,
the Group did not have any bank overdraft (2017: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Save as dispose of 100% equity of High Amuse Limited to The
Star Overseas Limited, a company directly owned by Ms. Chow
Man Ki Kelly who is an executive director of the Company, on 6
December 2017 (please refer to the Company’s announcement
on that date for details of the transaction), there was no
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s exposures to foreign currencies mainly arises from
receivables from PRC customers and its investment in foreign
subsidiaries which are financed internally in RMB, and payables
to PRC suppliers. In order to mitigate the potential impact of
currency fluctuations, the Group closely monitors its foreign
currency exposures and will use suitable hedging instruments
against significant foreign currency exposures, where
necessary. No foreign currency hedge contract was entered
into by the Group during the Year. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group had no outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts
(2017: Nil).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 111 (2017: 124) staff
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong. Total
staff costs including directors’ remuneration were approximately
HK$16.3 million during the Year. Included in the total staff
costs of approximately HK$21.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2017 was share-based payments to Directors of
approximately HK$5.6 million. No share-based payment was
made to Directors for the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will
be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees. During the
Year, no share option was granted to certain Directors (2017:
82 million share options).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2017: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

In February 2018, Bingo Movie Development Limited (“Bingo
Movie”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company has entered
into an agreement (the “JV Agreement”) to establish a joint
venture (the “dV") with Lechuang Holdings (HK) Limited, an
independent third party. Bingo Movie holds 49% equity stake in
the JV and JV is considered an associate of the Company.
Based on the JV Agreement, Bingo Movie has to advance a
loan of not less than HK$25 million and not more than HK$35
million to the JV. As at 31 March 2018, the aforesaid loan is
yet to be advanced to the JV. The Group had no material capital
commitments as at 31 March 2018. (2017: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Details of operating lease commitments are stated in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.

OUTLOOK

Owing to the continuing development of the film industry in the
PRC, the Group will continue to grasp other business
opportunities in investments in cinemas in the PRC and
attractive movies. While the Group continued its existing
businesses, the Group will put more focus onto locating other
business opportunities with enormous potentials, including
provision of consultancy services, online games developing and
operating businesses, and investments in China cultural
industry.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

The VR (Virtual Reality) and MR (Mixed Reality) industry is
undergoing rapid development and the Company considers that
there will be growth potential in investment of VR and MR
projects. On 9 February 2018, the Group entered into an
agreement with Lechuang Holdings (HK) Limited (“Lechuang”) in
relation to the formation of the joint venture company (“‘dV
Company”’). The formation of the JV Company will allow the
Group to utilise its experience in provision of interactive
contents with the expertise of Lechuang in developing VR and
MR projects. The Company is optimistic as to the prospect of
the JV Company, and will grant a loan to the JV Company of not
less than HK$25 million and not more than HK$35 million.

The Board believes that the Group’s existing businesses can
create a synergistic effect with the above-mentioned new
businesses and will benefit the Group in the future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, investors
and business partners for their continued support and
confidence in the Group. | would also like to thank my fellow
Directors and senior management team who have offered
invaluable advice and leadership during such a challenging year
and the management team and all staff for their dedication,
loyalty and valued services.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBEFREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiau Sing Chi — Mr. Chiau has over 25 years of
performance and management experience in the movie
industry. Mr. Chiau has been a leading icon of the movie and
entertainment industry in the Greater China Region for over 25
years, and had received numerous awards in the industry,
including best supporting actor, best actor and best director
awards presented by leading film academies. Mr. Chiau joined
the Group in June 2010. He is currently a director of a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chiau is a brother of Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly — Ms. Chow was appointed as an
executive Director in January 2014. Ms. Chow has over 15
years’ ample experience in movie production and distribution as
well as licensing businesses. She is currently directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Chow is a sister of Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee — Mr. Chan joined the Group in August
2007. He is one of the responsible officers of China Everbright
Securities (HK) Limited. Mr. Chan is currently a licensed person
to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in
futures contracts), type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading)
and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the
College of Business Administration of the University of South
Florida in the United States of America. Mr. Chan is
experienced in dealing in securities, fund management,
corporate management, corporate finance and managing listed
investment companies under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBEFREERE

Since June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment
Limited (stock code: 1217), an investment company listed on
the Stock Exchange, as executive director. Mr. Chan was
appointed as an executive director of China Investment and
Finance Group Limited (stock code: 1226), an investment
company listed on the Stock Exchange, in March 2011. Mr.
Chan was appointed as an executive director of China
Investment Development Limited (stock code: 204), an
investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in May
2012. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of
Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324), an investment company
listed on the Stock Exchange, in November 2012. Mr. Chan
was appointed as an executive director of Alpha Returns Group
PLC, an investment company listed on AIM of London Stock
Exchange, in May 2013. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
executive director of China New Economy Fund Limited (stock
code: 80], an investment company listed on the Stock
Exchange, in June 2013. Mr. Chan was also appointed as an
executive director of China Trends Holdings Limited (stock code:
8171), which is listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, in
February 2016. Mr. Chan is currently directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Lau Man Kit — Mr. Lau joined the Group in January 2014.
Mr. Lau has over 35 years of extensive sales and marketing
experience in various industries, including property
management, computer technology systems and automobiles,
and has a wide business network in China. Mr. Lau is currently
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, Roberta — Mrs. Chin has co-
produced various films with the Golden Harvest Group in the
past. Mrs. Chin holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in English
Literature from Dominican University of California, USA and a
Master’'s Degree in Communication — Documentary film from
Stanford University, USA. Mrs. Chin has more than 30 years’
experience in the film production and distribution industry,
including as an interim CEO in the JC Group. Mrs. Chin joined
the Group in May 2010. Mrs. Chin is currently directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Choi Mei Ping — Ms. Choi has approximately 20 years’
ample marketing experience in the airline industry. She is
currently working in an international airline company. She has
joined the Group in November 2014.

Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk — Mr. Tsoi has over 5 years’ ample
experience in capital markets industry. He is currently working
as the Chief Executive Officer of Ice River Investments
International Company Limited. He has joined the Group in
December 2015.

Mr. Ong King Keung — Mr. Ong holds a bachelor degree in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
master degree in corporate finance from the City University of
Hong Kong. He is a member of both the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He is currently a director of a
professional audit firm in Hong Kong, and has over 15 years of
experience in auditing and accounting industry. He has joined
the Group in December 2016.

Mr. Ong is an independent non-executive director of China
Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855), Risecomm
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1679) and Tech Pro
Technology Development Limited (stock code: 3823)
respectively, their respective shares of which are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong is also an
independent non-executive director of My Heart Bodibra Group
Limited (stock code: 8297) the shares of which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong had also been an
independent non-executive director of Deson Construction
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8268), the shares
of which are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, since
December 2014 and has been subsequently re-designated as
a non-executive director since December 2015.
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Mr. Ong was an independent non-executive director of Koala
Financial Group Limited (formerly Sunrise (China) Technology
Group Limited) (stock code: 8226]) for the period from February
2017 to September 2017 and China Candy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8182) for the period from February 2016 to
September 2017 respectively, the shares of which are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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OVERVIEW

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report for the year ended 31 March
2018 (the “Year”). The Company is concerned to have high
standards of corporate governance. It is important because the
Board believes that good quality corporate governance would
assist the management to monitor the Company’'s business
activities effectively and thus interests of the shareholders of
the Company will be well protected.

The Company has applied the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code”). The
Company is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions,
save for the deviations discussed below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year. The
Company has also made specific enquiry to all Directors and,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard of dealing and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’'s business and affairs. The ultimate
responsibility for the day to day management, administration
and operation of the Company is delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in
all major matters of the Company. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the Group and the Board has the full support of them to
discharge its responsibilities.
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out on pages 11 to 14 of this annual report.
Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is
appropriately structured to provide sufficient checks and
balances to protect the interests of the Group and the
shareholders. The Board will review its composition regularly to
ensure that it has the appropriate balance of expertise, skills
and experience to continue to effectively oversee the business
of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee with the reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company’'s performance
and current market situation. Details of emoluments of the
Directors for the Year are disclosed in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eight
Directors, including four executive Directors, namely Mr. Chiau
Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, Mr. Chan Cheong Yee and Mr.
Lau Man Kit; one non-executive Director, namely Mrs. Chin
Chow Chung Hang Roberta; and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Choi Mei Ping, Mr. Tsoi Chiu
Yuk and Mr. Ong King Keung. Mr. Chiau Sing Chi and Ms. Chow
Man Ki Kelly are siblings. Save as disclosed, the Board
members have no financial, business, family or other material /
relevant relationship(s) with each other.

Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing
their independence from the Company in accordance with the
guidelines on director independence of the GEM Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the
same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant topics which may
count towards Continuous Professional Development training.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the Year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by
attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Year
under review is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets
indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a Board Member or Committee Member (as
the case may be).

BRETAENEABLK EFESHERBEZE
BROBETERENMB LN NEREHE
ZSFHANBRYAMTHER -RAFE 2
REZVEBLERIREXAHERNRAER
FEERELBERBEER ZTA2BAE L
FEBEEXEBRRBIED-

AARBEREEE > EERSRME B IRR
FEEEREREREROLEDME LY
EENBRABE T ARFAEL - FREEKE
BER -

RADBEFEERN SEEHFEEEEEH %8
EEBLBMRARE ZRBHN TR -FERAZE
FHEBALRESERELZBEKE (RT
BRAME) PEAMBITZREZERERHK -

Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
EspE EZ28% ENZESSE FMHZEEeE REZEE8EE RRBEFXS
Executive Directors HBTES
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi AEf%E 3/(7)  N/AT@ERE  N/ATER N/ATER 0/(1)
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly AXEZ T 7/7)  N/AT#@EA 1/ /(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BRERKE 6/(7) N/ATERE  N/ATER  N/ATER 1/(1)
Mr. Lau Man Kit B EAE 6/(7) N/AZT@ER N/ATER N/ATER 1/(1)
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, Roberta BRFEHLL 7/7)  N/AT@EE  N/ATER N/ATER 1/(1)
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Ms. Choi Mei Ping BEFLLT 6/(7) 3/(4) 1/01) 1/01) 0/(1)
Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk BEEHBEE 6/(7) 3/(4) 1/01) 1/01) 0/(1)
Mr. Ong King Keung AT E 7/(7) 4/4) 1/ 171 0/01)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer during the year ended 31 March 2018.
The Board is in the process of locating appropriate persons to
fill the vacancies of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Even so, the Board considers that the existing Board members
are able to share the power and responsibilities of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer among themselves, as detailed
below.

Based on Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. The Board’s current significant decisions are made in
Board meetings. Every Board member has the rights and
responsibility to propose Board meetings to discuss significant
issues he/she concerns, and has the power to make the
decisions among other Board members.

With reference to Code A.2.2,
director who proposes that meeting (the “Convenor”) would

in each Board meeting, the

generally be appointed as the chairman of the meeting in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
and he/she has to ensure all directors briefed on issues arising
at board meeting.

With reference to Code A.2.3, the Convenor has to provide the
meeting agenda and materials (the “Board Papers”) to the
company secretary, and the company secretary will then pass
the Board Papers to other Board members for their review.
it is the Board's
practice that the Board Papers have to be given to the Board

Unless urgent matters to be discussed,

at least 3 days in advance of the Board meetings. Other Board
members should have enough time to read the Board Papers
and raise questions and/or request more information before
holding the Board meetings. For the urgent Board meetings,
the Convenor and/or company secretary have to contact
individual Director about the details of the agenda meeting and
the reasons of urgency. Every Board member has the right to
reqguest additional time to understand the agenda details and
delay the Board meeting.
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With reference to Code A.2.4, the executive Directors jointly
provide leadership of the Board, and ensure the Board works
effectively and perform its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. As
mentioned above, all Directors have the rights to propose
Board meetings. The company secretary has to summarise all
agenda items and circulate the agenda to all Board members.

With reference to Code A.2.5, the Board members share the
responsibility to ensure good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established. It is the practice of the Board
to discuss corporate governance issues in the meetings to
approve the interim and annual results.

With reference to Code A.2.6, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of encouraging all directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to
ensure that it acts in the best interest of the Company. The
Convenor has the responsibility to encourage other Directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time
for discussion of issues and ensure the Board decisions fairly
reflected Board consensus.

With reference to Code A.2.7, the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) hold at least a
meeting among themselves annually, to consider and discuss
any significant issues of the Company and the Board, without
influence from the executive Directors.

With reference to Code A.2.8, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of ensuring that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole. It is a
general practice that the executive Directors will discuss the
shareholder’s viewpoints with non-executive Directors in the
Board meeting following a shareholders’ meeting.
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With reference to Code A.2.9, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of promoting a culture of openness and
debate by facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive Directors. As mentioned
above, all directors, including non-executive Directors, have the
right to propose a board meeting to discuss the issues they
consider important, and enough time is reserved for all
Directors to read the Board Papers and raise questions. It is
the Board's practice to encourage the non-executive Directors
to raise their viewpoints in Board meetings.

Code A.5.1 states that an issuer should establish a nomination
committee which is chaired by the chairman of the board or an
independent non-executive director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive directors. It is the Board's practice
to appoint an executive Director as the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board, as the Board considers
that executive Directors have to lead the business development
of the Company and need to have appropriate Board members
In addition, the
nomination committee of the Board consists of majority of

and senior management to assist them.

independent non- executive Directors, who have the veto power
jointly if they consider the nomination is inappropriate.

With reference to Code B.1.1, the remuneration committee of
the Board would consult Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and the major shareholder of the Company about their
remuneration proposals for other executive Directors.

With reference to Code E.1.2, the Board appoints as least one
executive Director to attend the annual general meeting, due to
the chairmanship vacancy. The executive Directors have to
invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees of the Board to attend the annual general meeting.

With reference to Code F.1.3, it is the Company’s practice that
the company secretary report to the executive Directors.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but they are
subject to re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Articles of the Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

ATTENDANCE IN GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to Provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. The independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Director could not attend the
annual general meeting held in the year ended 31 March 2018
due to other business commitments.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board, which include (a) to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group
and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.
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The Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of its corporate governance policy.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’'s report
attached to the Group’'s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2018 set out in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ka Yin, who is a director of an external service
provider, was appointed as the company secretary in November
2013. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He reports to the executive Directors of
the Company and assists the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently. During the Year, Mr. Chan undertook over 15
hours of professional training to update his skill and knowledge.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee
comprises all independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Choi Mei Ping (Chairman), Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk, Mr. Ong King
Keung and one executive Director, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include (a)
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b)
to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
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proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives; and (c) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of executive Directors, non-executive
Directors, and senior management, and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate.

The primary goal of the remuneration on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Group to motivate
executive Directors and senior management by linking their
remuneration with reference to the Group’s operation results,
which reference to individual performances and comparable
market statistics.

The principal elements of the Group’s executive remuneration
package include basic salary, discretionary bonus, and share
options.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises Ms.
Chow Man Ki Kelly (Chairman) an executive Director, and all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Choi Mei
Ping, Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk and Mr. Ong King Keung.

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and determining the policy for nomination of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written
terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those stipulated in Code provisions.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors and
measureable objectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural background, educational background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience. All Board appointments
will be based on merit, and candidates will be measured against
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The Nomination Committee has the delegated
responsibilities to monitor the implementation and review the
board diversity policy and report to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual report and accounts, interim report and quarterly
reports and to provide advices and comments thereon to the
Board. The Audit Committee will also be responsible for
reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting,
risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Audit Commmittee comprises all independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ong King Keung
(Chairman), Ms. Choi Mei Ping and Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk. In the
meetings held during the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual, interim and quarterly results of the Company and
made recommendations to the Board and the management in
respect of the Company’s financial reporting, risk management
and internal control system.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 March 2018, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the consoclidated financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis.
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The responsibilities of the external auditor on financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to the
Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2018.

The Board has regularly reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems with
an aim to safeguard the shareholders’ interests and the
Company's assets. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements,
errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in achieving the Company's business objectives.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2018, fees for the Company’s
external auditor for audit services and non-audit services were
HK$750,000 and HK$70,000 respectively.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 44 to 49.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective risk management functions are maintained, while
management is required to provide responsive actions to
manage risk. A sound and effective risk management is
designed to identify and manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

Risk Management Framework

We adopt an integrated bottom-up and top-down risk review
process to enable comprehensive identification and prioritization
of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation of material
risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue among
the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation
efforts.
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Internal Controls Model and Continuous Improvement

Our internal controls model is based on that set down by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the U.S. Treadway
Commission (“COS0”) for internal controls and has five
components, namely Control Environment; Risk Assessment;
Control Activities; Information and Communication; and
Monitoring. In developing our internal controls model based on
the COSO principles, we have taken into consideration our
organizational structure and the nature of our business
activities.

We have put in place a phased improvement plan and
progressed to future enhance our internal controls and risk
management system. The initial phase of the plan focused on
adopting a more risk-based (instead of process-based) approach
to risk identification and assessment. This approach enriches
our ability to analyze risks and respond to opportunities as we
pursue our strategic objectives. Management reporting to the
Audit Committee has also been enhanced, including the
presentation of special reports on selected risk topics.

In the current place, we aim to further integrate internal
controls and risk management into our business processes,
including in annual budgeting and planning. Instead of treating
the COSO framework as a framework-update exercise, a holistic
approach has been adopted by us, taking into consideration the
Company’'s circumstances, including its ongoing internal
controls and risk management improvement plan as well as
other strategic initiatives (e.g. corporate social responsibility
strategy and reporting). All of these enhance our ultimate
objective to make our risk management system a “live” one that
is practiced on a day-to-day basis by operating units.
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The Board E£&
ERABRASE ERERHERABEENE
e  Sets strategic objectives;
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e Has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management system and internal controls systems;

¢ Review the effectiveness of our risk management systems and internal control systems;
e Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure for our major risks; and

e Provides direction on the importance of risk management culture.

assessment and
mitigation of risk
at corporate level

Rt BEREZRBERRABERHE: R

gERER Lz ERHRB T
“‘Bottom-up”
“Top-down” Identification,
Overseeing, = ment and
identification, Management %32 mitigation of risk

e Design, implements, and monitors risk management and internal controls systems; and

e Assesses our risk and mitigating measures Company-wide.
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effectiveness of the underlying risk management and internal controls systems
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at business unit
level and across
functional areas
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operations and functional areas
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Operational Level & & & &
¢ Risk identification, assessment and mitigation performed across the business; and

e Risk management process and internal controls practiced across business

Review of Risk Management & Internal Controls
Effectiveness

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company
has engaged independent professional advisors (the “Advisors”)
to carry out the internal audit functions by performing
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
Advisors have conducted an annual review (the “Annual Review”)
of and made recommendations to improve the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems.
Based on the Annual Review the Board considered the risk
management and internal controls system effective and
adequate. No significant areas of concern that may affect the
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financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk
management functions of the Group has been identified. During
the review, the Board also considered the resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions, and their training and budget
were adequate.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has put in place a policy on handling and
dissemination of inside information which sets out the
procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner in such a way to avoid
placing any person in a privileged dealing position. The inside
information policy also provides guidelines to employees of the
Group to ensure proper safeguards exists to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory and listing rule
disclosure requirements. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential
inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant
information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Save as amendments on Articles 63 and 124 which were
approved at the Company’'s annual general meeting on 21
September 2017, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposal at general
meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
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transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the articles of association of the
Company, no person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a written notice (unless otherwise specifically
stated and as further defined in the articles of association of
the Company)  (the “Notice”) signed by a shareholder of the
Company (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a
Notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the
Company or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such Naotice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
(7) days and that (if the Notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Company, for the attention of the Board of Directors, by
email: info@bingogroup.com.hk, or mail to Units A&F, 10/F,
Ho Lee Commercial Building, 40 D’'Aguilar Street, Central,
Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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Investor Relations and Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including quarterly, interim and annual reports and
public announcements. While the annual general meeting
provides a valuable forum for direct communication between
the Board and its shareholders, the Company also maintains its
website to provide an alternative communication channel for
the public and its shareholders. All corporate communication
and Company’s latest updates are available on the Company's
website for public’s information.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2018 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2018 by operating segment is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to
53. The Directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 156. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Fair review of the Company’s business and likely future
development

Please refer to “Directors’ Business Review” on pages 6 to 10.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
Environmental protection

The Group has taken an initiative to promote employees’
awareness of environmental protection and the need to achieve
efficient utilisation of resources through launching paper
recycling in offices.

Compliance with laws and regulations

In order to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Group emphasises the importance of adhering to
anticorruption practices for all employees. The Group regards
honesty, integrity and fair play as its core values that must be
upheld by all employees of the Group at all times. As such, the
Board has instructed the Group’s employees are not allowed to
solicit or accept any advantage for themselves or others, from
any person, company or organisations having business dealings
with the Group.

Company’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities to
advance their career. The Group’s policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations, seminars
and training courses related to their roles and duties through
leave grants. Competitive remuneration is also offered to
employees and their performance is reviewed on an annual
basis reflecting each employee’s contributions to the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Company's operations. Details
of the share option scheme arrangement can be referred to
the “Share Option Scheme” section in this Directors’ report and
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in either the Company’s convertible
bonds, share capital and share options during the Year are set
out in notes 25, 26 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During in the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 4.8% of the total sales for the year and sales to
the largest customer included therein amounted to 4.1%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted to
92.5% of the total cost of sales for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 82.2%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi

Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
Mr. Lau Man Kit

Non-executive Director:
Mprs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta

Independent non-executive Directors:
Ms. Choi Mei Ping

Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk

Mr. Ong King Keung

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Ms. Chow Man Ki
Kelly, Mr. Lau Man Kit and Ms Choi Mei Ping shall retire by
rotation in accordance with Article 84(1). All of them being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2018 and it still considered them to be independent as
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the Year, none of the Directors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of the subsidiaries or its holding company was a
party and in which any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at the time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance
Policy for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such
palicy are reviewed annually by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the following Directors of the Company
had or were deemed to have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of

EERXS - RERSHhzHG

RS MIEMRMAIIMBEEN EFLE
FEHARRE - ERME AR SE R AR R 7 A
AEEXBEAEAMERARAFREIAFENRN
MABRZEMEAR S THAAKNTEERX
EEABEAER

RAFEERET LN FETMNERNRBRHE
BHREMEARDOZEERTRABZALN -

EFEREA
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EFERS

the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws

of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) (i) which were required to be notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such

provisions of the SFQO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to

section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred

to herein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of

the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the

Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange:

(@) Long positions in the shares of the Company

ZB - BB RESFF - B IR EHE ()
RIEFFLBEERAEXVHBETRBHHEME
ARFI MRz EEIRR (BRENERER
MR GROARBIGSUREFXRERE 2%
@Ok R ) ¢ (i) R IR 5 N B E 1R 0] E3521{F
BREAZ G E R 2 s gOR A - i) 1R
BGEM F T BIZE5.46%5.67K 6 MES#
TREXDZHEERMERNRNE NRE T2’

SL A
m SRR -

() RADBRHGZHA

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of
Name of Directors Nature of interest Shares held the Company
EARRF
EBITRA
EEnS EmEftE RO EE BMYBE D
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee Beneficial owner 5,000 0.00%
REZEEL EmEAA
Mpr. Chiau Sing Chi (Note 1) Beneficial owner 110,294,117 3.22%
FEIEBSEE (Bat1) BEmEAA
Held by trust 1,608,484,963 47.01%
HEFERA
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly (Note 1) Held by trust 1,608,484,963 47.01%
X2+ (HfatT) HIEFERE
Notes: Wi
1. These shares are registered in the name of Beglobal 1. #Z% B9y A Beglobal Investments

Investments Limited and Golden Treasure Global Investment
Limited. Beglobal Investments Limited and Golden Treasure
Global Investment Limited are companies indirectly owned
by the trust, the discretionary objects of which are Mr.
Chiau Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly and their family.

2. The total number of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2018 was 3,421,538,679.
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(b)

Long positions in the underlying shares of the (b) RAQATHBERGZHR
Company
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 ARAERZZE—_F N \A+HBERMA—
August 2012 which the Board may, at their discretion, TRRERERTE Bl EFGARERDE
offer employees, Directors, or any other persons who HASEELERZER EFHEME
have contributed to the Group to take up share options to A TREEZEL  IRE R E £ 5T 7
subscribe for shares subject to the terms and conditions AR R AR 4N P SREB IR 1 < B AR A o
stipulated in that share option scheme.
Details of the share options granted to the Directors RAFE ZESHEETETESTZ2ER
under the Schemes and movements in such holdings EREEZEFFNOT
during the Year were as follows:
Number of
Number of Number of Number of options Number of
options held options options cancelled/ options held
as at granted exercised lapsed as at
1 April during during during 31 March
Name of Directors Option type 2017 the Year the Year the Year 2018
RZB-t#§ REEE REEE REFE  RZB-NF
BRE mA-BfiE Ritiz ki ¥4 F8/%% ZA=t+-A
£ Eobil BREHA k&S H BRE®E EREHE FRBREHE
(Note 1) (000) (000) (000) (000) (000)
(1) (F1) (F4) (F1) (F13) (F13)
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi 2012A 3,000 - - (3,000) -
REHEE 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2015A 8,000 - - - 8,000
2017A 34,000 - - - 34,000
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
AT 2015A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2016A 30,000 - - - 30,000
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee 2012A 15,000 - - (15,000) -
REZLE 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2015A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2016A 3,000 - - - 3,000
Mr. Lau Man Kit 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
NSk 2015A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2016A 3,000 - - - 3,000
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta ~ 20712A 3,000 - - (3,000) -
RIPEHRT 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2015A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2016A 3,000 - - - 3,000
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Number of

Number of Number of Number of options Number of

options held options options cancelled/ options held

as at granted exercised lapsed as at

1 April during during during 31 March

Name of Directors Option type 2017 the Year the Year the Year 2018

R=B-t#& REEE REEE REEE  RZB-NF

BRE MA-BfE Rtz Tz HH/%%  ZA=1-B

EEps ] BREHA REHE BREZE BREBE HFEBREHA

[Note 1) (000) (000) (000) (000) (000)

(Hit1) (T1) (T13) (T13) (T1) (F13)

Ms. Chai Mei Ping 2015A 3,000 - - - 3,000

EXTat 201B6A 3,000 - - - 3,000

Mr. Tsai Chiu Yuk 2016A 3,000 - - - 3,000
ZHBEE

Total 85t 138,000 - - (21,000) 117,000

Note 1: Details of specific categories of share options are
disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition to 45,000,000 number of Shares which would
be allotted and issued upon the exercise in full of the
options offered to Mr. Chiau Sing Chi under the share
option scheme of the Company above, 220,588,235
number of Shares which would be allotted and issued
upon the exercise in full of the convertible bonds held by
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFQO), (i) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQO); or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2017/18

a1 ERREEMNBREZHBREAY
KM 32K EE -

BRiR IR Bl AR R U A 3R T A 2 Bt
FEZBREEZETERS TRE LS
17 245,000,0000% i 7 4 - & £ 5ty 5t £
P AT R AR 55 1 2 T 17 0 A5 o T BC 35 K
#17220,588,235/ % 7 °

BREXWEEN R_ZE—-N\FE=ZA
=t+—B ARREEHESTTRAEH
ERAARREMBBEIE (EEREER
HI IR B EBEXV ED) 2 & fn - R D &
FH HEESEBRERE)IREE %}&Hﬂ
EEPIEXVBE7RBD FAME AR

Ko B 22 BT 2 AT AR #E Eﬁz/ﬁ’é(@%fﬁiﬁﬂi
HEH RSN B BIE S E (ERE
BMHZEZIKAE) KN REFESH LS
B &P EI521G BRI AZIGRT B2
EfER AR 3k (iil) iE%FGEMJ:m%ﬁH'J
F5.46E5. 67K EBHEFTETESRR
ZHRTEAME RN E R QFﬁZEﬂ%"
i/ﬂ(E’ﬂ



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2018, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or was deemed to have, interests or short in
the shares or underlying shares (i) which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii)
who is expected, directly and indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group or (i) which were required, pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

ERRREH A LR G 5 HRK
frziEa

REFEAM R_FT-NF=ZA=+—H HUT
AL (AFFARREZTLRHTHRAR)REN
SEERNDFHERAIERERE(NVREZSF K
HEGOIEXVEFE2R35 B Z &AM AR F
KRR EAaIORR (i) AR EEX
BEEA TARRBA (| TESEARMNRE
MERTEAREEAKEARZKRRAE L
BR)EE10% KA L 2 et SOR B (i)
RIEE 7 LG G0 £330/ A 50 80 5% IR A
B ERIOKER

RELXTROREBERD TR

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Shareholders Shares held the Company
HARRAB BT

RREHE iR 88 RAEBNBED L
Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited (Note 1) (47:%1) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited (Note 1) (#1:E1) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
Beglobal Investments Limited (Note 2) [ /1:£2) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited (Note 2] [ #1:£2) 290,000,000 8.48%

Notes:

1. Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly and their family are
the beneficiaries of a discretionary trust of which Sinostar FE
(PTC) Limited (“Sinostar”) is the trustee. Sinostar as the trustee
of the discretionary trust is the sole shareholder of Treasure
Offshore Holdings Limited, which is the sole shareholder of
Beglobal Investments Limited.

2. Beglobal Investments Limited directly holds 1,318,484,963
shares of the Company (representing approximately 38.53% of
the issued share capital of the Company) and indirectly holds
290,000,000 shares of the Company (representing
approximately 8.48% of the issued share capital of the Company)
through Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited as at 31
March 2018.

Wiat

1. ARMGEE AXEztTRERBA—(EZ2ERE
2 %@ A ' Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited
([Sinostar |) AZ 2 #EEFRZZRAERZ
{5t 2 X5 A Sinostar & Treasure
Offshore Holdings Limited 2 M — %5 -+ 2 A
7] /& Beglobal Investments Limited 2 M — %
Ho

2. RZET—-—NF=HF=+—H Beglobal
Investments Limited B#3561,318,484,963
BAQNBBRD (BARBE HETRAD
38.53%) ' I % i@ Golden Treasure Global
Investment Limited & # ¥ /290,000,000
KRABIREGD (AR RBEITIRALB.48%) °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors, eligible employees
and participants who have contributed to the Group, and will
expire on 14 August 2022. Under the Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to certain
employees of the Group and any distributor, contractor,
business partner, promoter, service provider, customer,
supplier, consultants, agents and advisers or any person who,
in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group in recognition of their contribution to
the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme is
183,153,867 shares, which represents approximately 5.35%
of the number of total issued shares of the Company, and the
Company had 400,800,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 11.7% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

As at 31 March 2018, the remaining life of the Scheme was
approximately 4 years and 5 months.
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Number of
Number of Number of options Number of
Number of options options cancelled/ options
options granted exercised lapsed held as at
held as at during during during 31 March
Category Option type 1 April 2017 the Year the Year the Year 2018
R-B—+tF AARFEEH RZB-—N\F
mA—B REFERHZ REFETEZ KBz =A=+-—H
LYl BB R FEBREHE BRERE BRERE BREZRE MEBREHE
(000) (000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(Ft (Ft (1 (F» (F1%)
Directors & % 2012A 21,000 - - (21,000) -
2014A 15,000 - - - 15,000
2015A 23,000 - - - 23,000
2016A 45,000 - - - 45,000
2017A 34,000 - - - 34,000
Employees & & 2012A 10,000 - - (10,000) -
Advisors & [ 2014A 277,140 - - - 277,140
2015A 132,000 - - - 132,000
20158 50,000 - - - 50,000
2016A 294,000 - - - 294,000
2017A 125,000 - - - 125,000
Total 485t 1,026,140 - - (31,000) 995,140
Note: Details of specific categories of share options are disclosed in ~ Afat © AR EIERIRE A 2 R B R & M B & M

note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

0 E -
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES” and “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, none of the Directors or employees of the
Group or their associates were granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries the rights to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any
such rights as at 31 March 2018.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to
ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Details of the Director's emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other connected transactions (including
continuing connected transactions) were entered into by the
Group under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Cheng & Cheng Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WO ow s oM OHF OB A R A A
10/F., Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 50 to 155, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. \We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was
addressed in our audit

REEXER

FAREZSFHEERERMANERHE RBYEAN
PR BBRRIBEGRRERZTH ZFE
HeAERMERERGAMBHRRMEARR
RETREEN R SHZFFREHERE

Bo

HEERER

BAHEZR
pURC): 2

Revenue from cinema
business

Refer to note 6 in the
consolidated financial
statements

We identified revenue
recognised from cinema
business as a key audit matter
as revenue recognised is
quantitatively significant to the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Revenue from box office
takings is recognised when
the services have been
rendered to the buyers. The
accounting policy for revenue
recognition is disclosed in note
2(l) to the consolidated
financial statements. The
Group recognised revenue of
HK$46.9 million from cinema
business for the year ended
31 March 2018, which is
disclosed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to
revenue from cinema business
included:

— Obtaining an understanding
of the revenue process of
the cinema business;

— Understanding and testing
the key controls over the
recognition of revenue from
cinema business;

— Performing test of details,
on sample basis, by
comparing the details and
amounts shown on the
underlying documentation,
including the journal
vouchers, and box office
takings report; and

— Testing the recognition of
material transactions close
to the end of the reporting
period to assess whether
those transactions were
recorded in appropriate
accounting period in
accordance with the
Group’s revenue recognition

poalicy.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal contraol.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. \We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shek Chi

Practising Certificate number PO5540

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2ol

iy =9 Eﬁi

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—B-NF —TtF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
" aF FET FET
Turnover EERE 6 47,877 45,230
Cost of sales HE KA (19,324) (18,788)
Gross profit EF 28,553 26,442
Other revenue and other net income H b U 2 K B A F WA 7 14,315 8,393
Selling and marketing expenses $HE K& HAX (9,904) (11,436)
Administrative expenses THHAX (40,337) (44,048)
Share-based payments AR D AR 2 3R 32 - (35,240)
Share of profit or loss of an assaciate 25 H & A B8z (3) -
Finance costs R E B AR 8 (3,166) (2,728)
Loss before taxation MrAR AT Es 18 g (10,542) (58,615)
Taxation 1A 12 (846) (1,001)
Loss for the year RFEEEE (11,388) (59,616)
Loss attributable to: FEREE

Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE F =N (10,542) (60,139)
Non-controlling interests RS (846) 523
(11,388) (59,616)
HK cents HK cents
Bl B

Loss per share BREE 14
Basic and diluted YIS & (0.31) (1.76)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FaRtElRaE

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Loss for the year AFEEEFR (11,388) (59,616)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hft 2@, (Ei8)
ltem that may be reclassified HEn s HEZBm HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BREBINEBEFCERZHE
foreign operations
— Exchange differences arising — AFEEECERER
during the year 3,471 (1,896)
— Release of exchange reserve — DEWB QA RIERRE L FE
upon disposal of subsidiaries 515 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) KEFZHEME2EWE (EE) -
for the year, net of tax BRI IE 3,986 (1,896)
Total comprehensive loss rEELHEEBEAHE
for the year (7,402) (61,512)
Total comprehensive loss BiE2EEEARE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIET ZSDN (6,455) (62,062)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR = (947) 950
(7,402) (61,512)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKRAER

At 31 March 2018
RZE-NF=ZA=+—HIFFE

2018 2017
—B-\F T t%
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
ik FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz WE MEE 15 11,863 18,497
Goodwill GES 16 950 950
Investment in an associate REEE R RN E 17 3 -
12,816 19,447
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade receivables & W BR 3k 18 1,277 968
Other receivables, deposits and Hith eI IE i e Rk
prepayments TR IR 19 30,003 4,335
Payments to parties for procurement MREZREB RSN
for investment of cinema business | 20 5,793 47.010
Films in progress and film rights EREZREZRE 21 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMhBSEEY 22 95,995 125,021
133,068 177,334
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables JE 1~ BR K 23 1,500 965
Deposits received, other payables and BYUE S - HAth fE T FRIE K
accruals JETF I8 24 17,437 684,412
Tax payables FET %18 1,336 1,539
20,273 66,916
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFE 112,795 110,418
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHABERABAE
LIABILITIES 125,611 129,865
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SaMBERARE

At 31 March 2018
RZE-NF=ZA=+—HIFFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EkFBEE
Convertible bonds AMRES 25 20,783 17,617
NET ASSETS BEEFE 104,828 112,248
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR &
Share capital % AR 26 136,861 136,861
Reserves & (43,263) (36,808)
93,598 100,053
Non-controlling interests FEVERE 2 11,230 12,195
TOTAL EQUITY DA 104,828 112,248

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 155 TFTIE#HRFES508 ZF 1558 K& BHMERD R
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Z—ZZT—-/\FRAZtTIhBEEE=gIERKE

directors on 29 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: TE WHTIEFRRESE:
Chan Cheong Yee Lau Man Kit
RE= 830 4%
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ﬁ
EEEEERERAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeERE

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

Equity Attributable
component Share to owners Non-
Share Share  Contributed of convertible options Exchange  Accumulated ofthe  controlling
capital premium surplus bonds reserve reserve losses Company interests Total
TRRES ARH
B& R EE B4R BEHS  BRERE ERGE 2R HEARE  FRRER #zt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAL TR TAL TEL AT TEL TR TEL TR TEL
At 31 March 2016 i S:2
=A=t+-H 136,861 420,810 3,930 76,520 76,365 (2,102) (585,509) 126,875 11,773 138,648
(Loss}/profit for the year £ (BR)/ 7 - - - - - - (60,139) (60,139) 523 (59,616)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ I EEA2E
income for the year (BB)/ - - - - - (1,923) - (1,923 27 (1,896)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ ~ A5E2E (F8B)/
income for the year WagsE - - - - - (1,923 (60,139) (62,062) 550 (61,512)
Equity settled share option NEREE 2 BRE
arrangement 37 - - - - 35,240 - - 35,240 - 35,240
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - - (9,510) - 9,510 - - -
Divicend payment to M ERER R
non-cantralling interests [h45) - - - - - - - - (128) (128)
At 31 March 2017 RZB-t%=A
=t+-A 136,861 420,810 3,930 76,520 102,095 (4,025) (636,138) 100,053 12,195 112,248
(Loss}/profit for the year %3 E ‘(E 8 ]/DJ\E M = - - - - - (10,542) (10,542) (846) (11,388)
Qther comprehensive (loss)/
income for the year
— Exchange differences
arising on translation - - - - - 3,572 - 3,572 (101 3,471
— Release of exchange - ﬁgﬁTE G
reserve upon disposal RERES
of subsidiaries Gl = = = = = 515 - 515 - 515
Total comprehensive (loss)/ ~ A%E2E (F8B)/
income for the year hsgs - - = = = 4,087 (10,542) (6,455) (947) (7,402)
Disposal of non-controlling RAEREHELA
interests relating to HEYRELE
subsidiaries disposal of FERER
during the year - - - - = = = = (18) (18)
Lapse of share options BEREL M - - - - (2,410) - 2,410 - - -
At 31 March 2018 RZZ2-\§=R
=+-A 136,861 420,810 3,930 76,520 99,685 62 (644,270) 93,598 11,230 104,828
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year KEEEE (11,388) (59,6186)
Adjustments for: I BA T B IE:
Income tax expenses FRS iz 846 1,001
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss RIB R R Z B E KA 3,166 2,728
Interest income B YA (391) (454)
Depreciation e 8,160 8,866
Exchange gain PE 7 Uk 2= (25) -
Other receivables written off il 3 L At W R IE 595 -
Share of profit or loss of an associate SIEEE A REE 3 -
Gain on disposal of subsidaries HEMBRAREE ZNE (2,146) -
Fixed assets written off WiEEEEE 20 162
Share-based payments AR5 B ERE 2 3R - 35,240
Operating cash flows before working capital HEEREHAIZ
changes KEESRE (1,160) (12,073)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables FEUBRZR (18 hn), R (309) 866
Decrease in other receivables, deposits H W IE 2 ®
and prepayments TETFRIE R 309 14,368
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables FETBRFRIE A, O 2) 535 (931)
Decrease in depasits received, B Wiz ® H A E R FRIE
other payables and accruals JE ST R IE R (6,704) (5,651)
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS BEFARS (7,329) (3,421)
Tax paid SN (1,049) (1,436)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING KeESEE (FTA) 2RE&FHE
ACTIVITIES (8,378) (4,917)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —ZT—+LF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FER FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Payments for investment in an associate Bt B & A 7] Z AR K (6) -
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEWBRFZ
subsidiaries RemAHHE 500 -
Net cash repayment from parties for BHERZREFHE
procurement 1,417 -
Gross deposit paid for investing projects 1% &8 B WE iR $ 45 (48,422) -
Refunds of deposit paid for investing KEBEHNEMIZRER
projects 23,818 -
Purchase of property, plant and BEMEBERZE
equipment (54) (1,802)
Interests received EHE 391 454
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETBFAZREFE
ACTIVITIES (22,356) (1,348)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBz2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT RRE w 2 BRE
interests - (128)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING AEEERTAZ
ACTIVITIES HEFHE - (128)
DECREASE IN CASH HeRBEEEWRED
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (30,734) (6,393)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FzHERESEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 125,021 131,913
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  JIME [ & & &) 2 2/ & 1,708 (499)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZEGRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 22 95,995 125,021

The Group’s only liabilities from financing activities are
convertible bonds, the changes of convertible bonds for the

year are shown in note 25 to the consolidated financial

statements. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flow as

cash flows from financing activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The head office and principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Units A
& F, 10/F., Ho Lee Commercial Building, No. 40 D’Aguilar
Street, Central, Hong Kong. The Company has its primary
listing on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) consider the Company’s
ultimate holding company to be Beglobal Investments
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
GEM Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below. These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under historical cost
convention as explained in the accounting policies set
out in annual report.

LFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time in
the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12  Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
For Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior year and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRICHnt 22

HK(IFRICHNt 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?®

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 39 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts™

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement?

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEHEENZRE (FH)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?®

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle’

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to Transfers of Investment

HKAS 40 Property’
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015-2017

Cycle?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 20189.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after a date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2021.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS S which are relevant to
the Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTQOCI"). All
other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Statement of compliance (Continued)

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments” (Continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and Measurement:

All financial assets and financial liabilities will continue
to be measured on the same bases as are currently
measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the expected credit loss model
of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
costs that are subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

HKFRS 9 ‘“Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Impairment: (Continued)

Based on the assessment by the directors of the
Company, if the expected credit loss model were to
be applied by the Group, the application of the
expected credit loss model would not have a material
impact on the financial assets measured at
amortised cost as at 1 April 2018 upon the
application of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the

entity satisfies a performance
obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Statement of compliance (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in
more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS15 will have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for
the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)
HKFRS 16 ‘Leases” (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, operating lease payments
are currently presented as operating cash flows.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group as lessee has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$31,440,000 as disclosed in note
30 to the consoclidated financial statements. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a)

b)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Statement of compliance (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of approximately HK$3972,000
as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and
such adjustments are considered as additional lease
payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
paid would be included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits received would be considered as advance
lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result in changes in measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it contrals an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the profit
or loss from the effective date of acquisition and up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
contraolling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’'s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

c)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Company had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

c)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

i) deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or
the replacement of an acquiree’s share-based
payment transactions with share-based
payment transactions of the Group are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

i assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non- controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net
of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree [(if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

c)

d)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or another
measurement basis required by another standard.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associate used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise in the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

d)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate. \When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

d)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Investment in an associate (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in
an associate but the Group continues to use the
equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

REPORT &3

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEHEENZRE (FH)

d)

REBE QXA 2RE (E)

—

TE @ARIBHERNZKREHR
ZEHEs MEEZABBERBER
R EANEBERENABERRLZ
B BREBERASTEGEAS
9RBENNTHMEER - BIAKE
REBRRAFEFEREER A
FEAMRESVTERFEZRAFE
BERrcREERETAREER
ZRFERLERE AR EBEER
IER TS RIBZ B ER - JIat A
BELEBERR 2B I i
ZBMERRERLENHBEEEXA
& RIAREE R gEF 2R R & %S
ABBZBERRANAEREME
Y s FE R B FT A £ 7R - B UL fin B
ERRNEREMEE K mERZ
BRENTEAHERBEELA
EzBas MASEREE 25 H
EHRRABEARRBRABRERSE
MoBERGSR JIEEH D EH
)

WAEEFBUBEADEEEA
Z

EARAKEHRNEE QR A HE
R BB MR EDRR - M IAER
H b 2 1 W 25 #E 2R B B BIRLPT B R
&

T/

R BBEROBNHERBEEE
BEREROBERE MAKE
HzBBEEN P BERR-

5%
&
=

M- EEERRAREBEAR
%5 BRBERARDHELL A
%R WAERS BB D F 2 M R A
EEEMOERT T HEAEEZ
SAMBRERR.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

e)

f)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Major costs incurred in restoring property, plant and
equipment to their normal working condition are
charged to profit or loss. Improvements are
capitalised and depreciated over their expected
useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

f)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant
and equipment that has already been recognised is
added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits, in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of
the existing asset, will flow to the enterprise. All
other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write-off the cost of each asset over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of
the lease terms and 20%

Leasehold improvement

Plant and machinery 10%

Computers 25-33%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Financial instruments (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries and cash
and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses, (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below), unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost less provision for
impairment.

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been impacted.

For all the Group’s financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade and other receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables and amounts
due from group companies, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade receivables or amounts due from group
companies are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued]

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The Group
classifies its financial liabilities into other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expenses over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
when appropriate, a short period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables,
other payables and accruals and amounts due to
subsidiaries are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Convertible bond

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that can
be converted to equity share capital at the option of
the holder, where the number of shares that would
be issued on conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at that time do
not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component
and an equity component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bond (Continued)

An initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of
the fair value of the compound instrument over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible bonds
equity reserve until either the bond is converted or
redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bonds equity
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is
redeemed, the convertible bonds equity reserve is
released directly to retained profits/accumulated
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Impairment of other assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— investments in subsidiaries and an associate;
and

— films in progress and film rights.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-
generating unit).

REPORT &3

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEREENZRE(E)

h)

HtbEE (BEKRS) (REXH
HEE g BE) BE

REFEHPR NEEHEEHA
MONEBE R AR T3 EEAR
BHBREMNTSR - % (BREENN) B
THERZEEREBECTBERFE
HERDHOTR

— xR -BEEXRE:

— RHBRAREBERRZKE:
M

— ENEFREUE-

WBEAZEDRRFE ZEEZH
Yem £ 5878 T DAY o

FHE A EIZ R

BEZAIKEEEEERFER
HEXARNKEREEIRSE - Hh
EREER G RIRERERA
RMREEEHREEREBEERSHA
[ B 2 3R B T 45 BF b 2 AT BE 3R K
BEKBRE- MREEMEENRS
MARERNETBINEMEEMRE
ERBReRABNEBEYELER S
mMANSNEERR (BIREELE
i) KEEE R UL Bl & 58 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Impairment of other assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
asset’'s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Impairment of other assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Company is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash without notice and which
were within three months of maturity when acquired.
Cash and cash equivalents include investments and
advances denominated in foreign currencies provide
that they fulfill the above criteria.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents would also
include bank overdrafts and advances from banks
repayable within three months from the date of the
advance.

REPORT &3

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES

MEBHREEZTE (E)
h) HttEE (HERN) (REXA

MAEE g HRE) REE)

IR R KR (E

RIZGEM LR A AR RARIRE
B EstERIE345 [ I B R &)
2T MRELE BUFE 2 P B
T-RPHHBIBMER AEEE
PR ERBA R4 45 B AR R 2 R (BRI
A AR N B o R

R HI R 2 ERBEEE
TERNERPRER & E HBRER
h HA B AE R BT O R R4S B IR RT
i TEERERAEERD B H
EBRM T2 RNEZEE -

BReERBEEEY

ReMReFEYWIEN TR
EHAERBHLBMNZBERTAE
AMAMBENRBZEE N ER
ABIHEE=EARZEKRE - RE
LRBEEEEMEEAINETELN
B Bl RR 2 IRE MBS

ERRGARSRERE HERP
SEEY NG BIEMB KA MET
=10 ANAREZ RITELREK-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

)

k)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

k)

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
costs and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance costs are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group's policy
on borrowing costs.

Lease where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases
are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND 2. WREELDRHITREEITESR

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MEREENZEE (E)
STANDARDS (Continued)
) Revenue recognition N EER
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the REBMRAIREESKENGMZE
economic benefits will flow to the Group and these W zs TR e Al SEET B AR S o

benefits can be measured reliably.

(i)  Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the
time when the goods are delivered to customers
and title has passed.

(i)  Income in respect of management services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

(i) Royalty income from the sub-licensing of
programme right and intellectual property right
is recognised on an accrual basis evenly over
the contract period.

(iv) Income from box office takings is recognised
when the services have been rendered to the
buyers.

(v) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the interest
rates applicable.

(vi) Income from investments in film production is
recognised when the films are released for
distribution.

(vi) Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attached to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

m)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case they are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the profit or loss because it excludes
items of income and expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

m)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

n)

o)

p)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Films in progress and film rights

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated at cost
incurred to date, less any identified impairment loss.
Cost is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Their costs are
amortised over the underlying licence period, with
reference to projected revenue.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes which
are defined contribution schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangement

Share options granted to directors and employees in
an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value
of services received is determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

For share options that vest immediately at the date

of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

p)

Share-based payment arrangement (Continued)

Share options granted to directors and employees in
an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement
(Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings/accumulated
losses.

Share options granted to advisors

For share options granted to advisors in exchange
for services, they are measured at the fair value of
the services received. If the entity cannot estimate
reliably the fair value of the services received, the
entity shall measure their value, indirectly, by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair values of the services are
recognised as expenses immediately, unless the
services qualify for recognition as assets, with
corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a)

r)

ANNUAL

2017/18

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences
are also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

r)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong
Kong Dollars (“HKD”) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and
their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

From 1 April 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a
foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to
a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are reattributed
to non- controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled
entities that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in the translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

s) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the entity that is preparing its financial statements

(“reporting entity”).

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to a reporting entity if that

person:

() has control or joint control over the
reporting entity;

(i) has significant influence over the reporting

entity; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the reporting entity or of a
parent of the reporting entity.

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the reporting entity are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entities is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

s) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-empolyment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the reporting entity or an entity related to
the reporting entity. If the reporting entity
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the
reporting entity;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provide key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

t) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

3. &#MTR

(a) ERTEES

AEBEEHEREENAERNR

the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as at the EHRZBREENT
end of the reporting period are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables (including cash B &R EWFHIE (BER S &
and cash equivalents) ReZED)
Trade receivables JrE Uk BR 3k 1,277 968
Financial assets included in other ETAHMEWRIBERIZS 2
receivables and deposits TREE 26,240 1,877
Payments to parties for procurement G EF R EK RS S
for investment of cinema business YAt 2 FIE 5,793 47.010
Bank balances and cash SRIT#HESB MRS 95,995 125,021
129,305 174,876
Financial liabilities tHeE
Financial liabilities measured at REHEKAGEZERMBE
amortised cost
Trade payables JE S BR R 1,500 965
Financial liabilities included in other ETNH b JE < 3R IE I B AT
payables and accruals HEZERBE 8,914 49,395
Convertible bonds AR (& 25 20,783 17,617
31,197 67,977
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

0}

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales, purchases and
recognised assets and liabilities that are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States Dollars (‘USD")
and Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group currently does not expect any
significant movements in the exchange rate of
USD to HKD and it is mainly exposed to the
effects of fluctuation in RMB. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

3.

&MTA(E)

(b)

M EEEEE W RBE

AREXBEYZEMBRR : T5
[\ fer (B2 48 HMEE L B K ) = L B )
EERRERBESRER AEELZ
ERAREEABH YT EZ
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MBRRZBETNTE-

(il SMNERE

AEBAES ZSMNERRREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. &MIAGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBEMEEBEMNRBEGE)
(Continued)

(il SMNERB (&)

(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

AN

Sensitivity analysis BRI DT

TREIRBERRAEEE
I 25 K B E’J?I\EE?'%@JE"
EZEIHjIE (RJFTEEM

RLBURFTE ) HAREE R
TR@:EETE (RRFER)EEDN

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and
accumulated losses) that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting

period had changed at that date, assuming all A Eg-putms  ER&E
other risk variables remained constant. In this TRETHBMEREZESER
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate ETREMEMEENEMAE
between the Hong Kong Dollar and the United EEPMXINEATE-
States Dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States Dollar against other currencies.

2018 2017

=E2-N\F —E—tF

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) Loss after  (decrease)  Loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated

rates losses rates losses

Ext#/ BRBEEFER EXxLA/ BRHAFER

(R i) 2 ER (TE) RiER

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER THER

Renminbi AR 5% (2,499) 5% (2,891)
(5%]) 2,499 (5%) 2,891

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. &MIAGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBEMEEBEMNRBEGE)

(Continued)

(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (] SMERE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) RS (8)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the BURRE D AT R AR HNE [ R & &)
change in foreign exchange rates had been PEAREFASERERR
applied to re-measure those financial ¥ & HA R TE & SME = e B9 & Bl
instruments held by the Group which expose TH- M TREBREFINE
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of BHBEREATEERBZEK
the reporting period. The analysis excludes FEANZEZR - HMKE_T
differences that would result from the — T FAERIA LT
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’'s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2017.

(il Interest rate risk (i) FEE

The Group is exposed to the cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk due to
its bank deposits and borrowings, respectively,
carrying interest at variable and fixed rates
which are disclosed in notes 22 and 25 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy and does not use any
derivative instruments to reduce its economic
exposure to the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for the Group's variable-rate bank
deposits. The analysis is prepared assuming
these financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 25 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting period interest
rate risk internally to key management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

REBRHERITERRERM
DREZBEEREFN R R X
NEEMNERRE  RITHFRIZ
FEREFEMEGE RN
Fae M mK W22 %258
B2 o AN E B Al I AR A 3K &
W MECRAEMITETLA
P AR HOACR N R B 8 2 8B R
Bz o

THBRED N TIRIBEANE E
FERTERZMNEERSE
EMETE -wmEZEDNER
BERBERRFEZERTA
REEFE-—EBEFE-RAX
EME@AE&ETTHHFWUTH
PR &P R o5 B BR AR AL N skom A2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. &MIAGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBEMEEBEMNRBEGE)

(Continued)

(i} Interest rate risk (Continued) (i]  FIRER (&)
If interest rates had been 25 basis points il 2 3, T FH25EE 2 -
higher/lower and all other variables were held MEABHEME EHEHE J
constant, there would have been no significant REBBE_ZT-NFR=
impact on the Group’s posttax loss for the year —tF=H=+—~H miﬁz
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 respectively. BRREBBEITEXNERTE -
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s T FEFEHRAERZZEIR
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate 17 T R TED e ) 26 [ B AT B o
bank deposits.

(i) Credit risk il  1EEERE
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable AEBEZEERRBREZRER

to cash at bank, trade and other receivables
and deposits and payments to parties for
procurement for investment of cinema
business. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at bank are placed with high-credit-quality
institutions and directors of the Group consider
that the credit risk for such is minimal.

In respect of trade receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. Debtors
with overdue balances, which will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis, are requested to settle

73R ¢ - FEURER 31 & H th g Uk
HERESUARRIEETRE
BRSEASNZRE-BEEE
E%IJJ{:.EBUE BEEEHR
BiEER

RUTASFRREREESZ
M%T% H$§l§$mﬁ*7ﬁ%§
= B R ARIEK

oW AR KM 5 - A BT
B EZREMH tﬂ%?%{%ﬁ B
ZEPETEEFE -KAEHE
% 4w {8 Bl {8 05 2 B B A o
Y RFEHEAEAMEERZK

all outstanding balances before any further 1575 BEMBBERK — K
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not CTAREEWNEREFIE

obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect
of trade and other receivables, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

(iv]

Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk from trade
and other receivables and payments to parties
for procurement for investment of cinema
business are set out in notes 18, 19 and 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Concentration risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and sundry debtor rather than the
industry or country in which the customers and
sundry debtors operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers or sundry debtors. As
at 31 March 2018, 74% (2017: 40%) of the
total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest trade debtor. 94% (2017:
18%) of the total other receivables and
deposits was due from the Group’s largest
sundry debtor. The concentrations of the credit
risk related to payments to parties for
procurement for investment of cinema business
can be referred to note 20.

3. &#MTIAGE)

(b) MBEBREEENREE(E)

(i)

(iv]

R (&)

THEMBEAERR &5
EERRASINBERBERE
BREAMBARRABRAINSE
MEECHREABE AREYLE
REEMER MBS AEE

AZEERR -

Hih A REAR E RURR &L E
fib FE M R IR A B L 48 & #o B 5
BREHD XN ZRBRAZZ
FERRZECEEEMER
RAMBRERMEI8 19Kk
20-

£

AEENEERRAETIER
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FHETE MAREP R
BEBARERETRABER
At - EXEESEHRAREIZ
RAEBHERNZEPREME
BARBEANABRBEL -
—E-NF=R=+—RH E
SR ABELZ74% (=F
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RAE HEBA - H s & UK
BRMREBEZIAN (ZF
—tF:18%) IRAAREE K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

v

Liguidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the board of directors when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. &MIAGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBEMEEBEMNRBEGE)

(Continued)

(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (] #REELEE (&)
The following table details the remaining THRAERREHRAREBIELT
contractual maturities at the end of the FeRBE(KREHIEMRR
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative ERmEFE BEZRELHTE
financial liabilities, which are based on B E (AR REBHRE
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including H2RME)FEZERNNE) 2
interest payments computed using contractual FIAE KB LA RA QA A
rates or, if floating, based on the rates current WESERZKFAHRAZFS-

at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the company can be required to

pay.
2018
ZE-N\F
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
undiscounted ~ 1yearor  lessthan less than
Carrying  cash flow on demand 2 years 5years  More than
amount SHEME  -FRF ZR-F6 ZRRER 5 years
REE RERSLH EZER DRWEF PREE SREE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$O00  HK$O0O  HK$OO0O
TEx TER T TEx FEx TR
Trade payables ER &R 1,500 1,500 1,500 - - -
Financial liabilities included in other & AE BB R
payables and accruals EitE e RAR 8,914 8,914 8,914 - - -
Convertible bonds mikES 20,783 30,000 - - 30,000 -

31,197 40,414 10,414 - 30,000 =

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. &MIAGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBEMEEBEMNRBEGE)
(Continued)
(v]  Ligquidity risk (Continued) v mEELEE (&)
2017
“TtF

Total More than ~ Mare than

contractual Within -~ 1 year but 2 years but

undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
Carrying  cash flow  on demand 2 years Syears  More than
amount  AAFEER  —FA% SR-FE  ZRREFE 5 years
BHE ReTELE EEX  ORWE  OREF SRDF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TFiEn Thn ThEL FiEn T ThEL
Trade payables R &R 965 965 965 - - -

Financial liabilities included in other & AE BN FE R
payables and accruals EHRELERER 49,395 49,395 49,395 - - -
Convertible bonds MhkES 17,617 30,000 - - 30,000 -
67,977 80,360 50,360 - 30,000 -
(c) Fair values (c) A¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 March 2018 and 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018

Bz

—E-NF=ZA=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

a) Impairment of films in progress and film rights

The management of the Group reviews the progress
of the films and film rights at the end of each
reporting period and identifies the slow-maoving film in
progress that is no longer suitable for use in
production. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such film in progress and film
rights based primarily on the recoverable amount. In
addition, the Group carries out review on each film in
progress and film rights at the end of the reporting
period and makes allowance for any film in progress
that production is no longer proceed.

EX &4t R FER

AEERBOEEERMEMAR (BER
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ERIESEREI ZHEE S AE e
HMEEL 2 BTN Z BRI ARER - ki
BRI HIRE R ARRPEESEXNTE [
GRERIEET R AR KRR ER - B Al g5 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

b)

c)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortization
charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
activities. Management will increase the depreciation
and amortization charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable and
amortization lives and therefore depreciation and
amortization expense in future periods.

Impairment of trade and other receivables, and
amounts due from a director of a subsidiary and
non-controlling interests

The Group makes impairment loss on doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables and other receivables, and
amounts due from a director of a subsidiary and non-
controlling interests. Impairment is applied to trade
receivables and other receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact carrying value
of receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

d) Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
two operating segments for the year:

Cinema investment and management — cinema
investment and provision of cinema management service.

Filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and
licensing businesses — movie production, licensing and
derivatives, crossover marketing, provision of interactive
contents, artist development and last miles engagement.

The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in @ manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions.

Segment result represents the profit or loss by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ salaries, investment and other income,
finance costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
HE LT \F=A=1—HIFEF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SEREHE (E)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, TRIEAZ2MEKLED BT AKE Z I
results, assets and liabilities by reportable and operating @moEE AENBAEGE-
segment.
Year ended 31 March 2018 Year ended 31 March 2017
BZ-Z-\F=A=t-HLEE HE-Z—+E-A=t-BILEE
Filmed Filmed
entertainment entertainment
Cinema new media Cinema new media
investment  exploitations investment  exploitations
and  and licensing and  and licensing
management  businesses Total  management businesses Total
EYRY. EYRE.
PR HREEER ¥ TREHER
REREE  BITEER @ RERER  BEEER @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THEx THEx THEx ThEL ThEL ThEL
Segment Revenue PEliE 46,929 948 47,877 44,770 460 45,230
Segment Results AREE
Reportable segment result UERHDEE (2,036) 4,579 2,543 (741) (1,520) (2,261)
Unallocated corporate income RABBERA 9,956 3,559
Unallocated corporate expenses FAEGERT (19,875) (21,945)
Share-based payments IAR1A BEH 2[5 - (35,240)
Finance costs BEMA (3,166) (2,728)
Loss before taxation BRAER (10,542) (58,615)
Segment Assets AHEE
Reportable segment assets AERHPEE 52,204 33,665 85,869 127,311 55,180 182,491
Unallocated corporate assets RAMCEEE 60,015 14,290
Consolidated total assets GRgENE 145,884 196,781
Segment Liabilities IHER
Reportable segment liabilities BEEGES T 11,454 3,244 14,698 48,262 10,921 59,183
Tax payables FERHE 1,336 1,539
Convertible bonds MhkES 20,783 17,617
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROWCERR 4,239 6,194
Consolidated total liahilties GRaRERE 41,056 84,533

‘m ANNUAL REPORT £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SEEH(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment information and RERDHER RS EESEEIRMS

allocating resources between segment:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other —

than unallocated corporate assets.

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments —

other than tax liabilities, convertible bonds and
unallocated corporate liabilities.

EEBENKENZ2HD A ERD
FEEEREERIN-

EBESEEF 2®RD A0 IR
BE -ARRESFRADECEXAE
BN

Other segment information: HitnpER

Year ended 31 March 2018

BE-E-\E=ZB=1+-HLEE

Filmed

entertainment

Cinema new media

investment  exploitations

and and licensing Corporate
management businesses level Total
BYRY.

P MEEERR
REREE  RTEXEK tXEH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER
Additions to non-current assets FRBEENE 54 - - 54
Interest income MEBA 297 49 45 391
Depreciation e 7,761 99 300 8,160
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A AEE 2 e - 2,146 - 2,146

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information: (Continued)

5. SEEH(E)
Hitp o BEHR : ()

Year ended 31 March 2017
BE2-ZT—+F=-A=+-HILtFE

Filmed
entertainment
Cinema new media
investment  exploitations
and  and licensing Corporate
management businesses level Total
EYRE.
Ph  MRRRER
REREE  BHERH tXEm st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TEL TET
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE 1,526 276 - 1,802
Interest income MEBA 401 53 - 454
Depreciation e 8,347 48 471 8,866
Revenue from major products and services: REFTEEMmRBRBZWE

AEEREEZEMSRBZ WA T

The Group’s revenue from its major products and services
were as follows:

2018 2017

=E-N\F —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAET

Cinema business AT 46,929 44,770
Production and distribution of film rights, & &/ ARAE RI1E K 3677 - ERI#E K

royalty and licensing income R RFREA 948 460

47,877 45,230

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information:

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (excluding Hong Kong). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location of the
customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods or
services. The geographical location of the non-current
assets is based on the physical location of assets in the
case of property, plant and equipment, and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated in the case of
goodwill and investment in an associate. Revenue from
external customers and information about non-current
assets by geographical location are detailed below:

SEWEH (E)
WEER

AEBETERBERPEARKME (T
BREBAEIREXR -TPZHBUERE
PR dln M imE sk R SRR - 3F
MEBEE IR E - WE  BFE R& B
mE DREEEFMWHE D MABHER
R—HEBERRNEEMS  AREBE
LBUEE D KEIBEP, 2 W kIR
BUuES D ZRBEEERFINMT

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMBES 2l BEFRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
BN\ —TtF ZB-NFf _"—TLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET THT THIT
Hong Kong B8 - - 132 528
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE (MaERE) 47,019 45,230 12,684 18,919
Others Hit 858 - - -
47,877 45,230 12,816 19,447
Revenue from major customers: REEREFzZWE :

There are no major customers contributing over 10% of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: Nil).

BE T \F=A=+—HILLFE #
EXTEEPERMASEREEBION (=
EtEFE)-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

0



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

6. TURNOVER 6. EX#®
An analysis of Group’s turnover for the year from RARFEE FNEEREEB 2 EERE
operations, is as follows: AT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Revenue from cinema business KRB E 12 W 46,929 44,770
Production and distribution of film rights ~ SJ¢E & #1778 S e 858 188
Royalty and licensing income BN R R R RE U 90 272
47,877 45,230
7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 7. Hfttlr ok EMBIA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income FEHA 391 454
Consultancy fee income EARE- L ON - 3,554
Exchange gain BEE 3 e 2,599 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 34 — HEWE QG EL 2 W
to the consolidated financial statements) (474 815 #H & K1:134) 2,146 -
Government grants (Note 1) BAT#ERE (M aET) 2,082 3,302
Other payables written off o B At FE 5 RROR 585 -
Others (Note 2] Hb (KaF2) 6,512 1,083
14,315 8,393
Notes: et
1. The government grants represent the subsidies received by 1. BAEUMEASERNPEEEL RE
the Group from the government for the operation of BT REHR - EAEZS MM 2 RE
cinemas in PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions or A SR A EIE -

contingencies relating to these grants.

‘m ANNUAL REPORT £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (Continued) 7. Hfili2 R EMBULA (&)

Notes: (Continued) Wt (&)

2. Included in the amount were an income from termination of 2. SEERKRILEPEEREESDHZ
PRC cinema investment contracts of approximately WA #2,691,0008 L (ZF—+t
HK$2,691,000 (2017: HK$187,000) and an over F:187,0008 L) hEE-T—+
provision of a consultancy fee of approximately FoA=-+T—HIEFEFRCERM
HK$3,819,000 provided during the year ended 31 March BRI E 43,819,000 T °
2017.

The Group entered into acquisition agreements for REEBR-_ZT——FiIv B HR"
acquiring the tangible assets for cinema business in N R EETRER 2B
Chengdu and Chongging in 2011 and paid a deposit of AE WEXZM#E£9,510,000%
HK$9,510,000. On 24 July 2014, the Group has TLeRZE—NFLAZ+HA &
terminated the acquisition plan and the vendors agreed to SEERIEWEASSIRESIREE
repay the deposit and a termination income. The Group has BReRHEEKLEPRA - RZT—+F
further entered into agreements with the vendors to —AZTmAR=ZE—tFLATH
determine the amounts of the termination income on 24 A AEEEREFHF R M

January 2017 and 19 July 2017. NEERIEWAZ -

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WMERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ESR ZHEER B 3,166 2,728

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

9.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. RRRAIEGIR
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRELRTEBBE MR (FFA) THISIE:
(crediting):
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Auditor’'s remuneration 2 ERD B & 750 750
Direct expenses of cinema business FREBEERX 19,324 18,788
Depreciation e 8,160 8,866
Exchange (gain)/loss FE (Uzk), /B8 (2,599) 1,967
Fixed assets written off WEEEE B E 20 162
Other receivables written off (Note) il 88 E Ab pE W R IE (AT AE) 595 -
Operating lease rental in respect of HREMEZ CERNEE
rented premises 5,762 5,433
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 TR A
remuneration) (BIEESEMS)
— Salaries and allowances — ¥& KER 14,141 14,142
— Equity settled share-based payments — RREEURND AER 2
(N — 5,581
— Retirement scheme contributions — RIRET B R 2,123 1,645
Equity settled share-based payments EfEREREEUNRD A
paid to advisors Bt 2 5K - 29,659

Note:

In view of the long outstanding period of the other receivables
amounted approximately HK$595,000, the management of the
Group has assessed the recoverability of the balance and believes
that it will not be received in the foreseeable future. The amount

was written off during the year.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the Company's
directors for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017

were as follows:

10. EFM&

HEZZ—N\FEZTE—tF=H="1T—
HIEFEEMNSENEARGESE ZBS W
T

Year ended 31 March 2018
BE_Z-N\F=A=+-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Share
Directors’ and other based
fee benefits payments Total
e 2 R &
EEsne  REAREN  ERZAR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER THER TET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi [FE 5% E - - - -
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly &3k 2+ 120 35 - 155
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BREERE 180 - - 180
Mr. Lau Man Kit BB 120 19 - 139
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta RS E#722 £ 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive Directors BV S TEE
Ms. Chai Mei Ping BEXFaL 120 - - 120
Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk EEiRLE 120 - - 120
Mr. Ong King Keung (Note 2] FHEsE (Hit2) 120 - - 120
900 54 - 954

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 10. EEM& (&)

Year ended 31 March 2017
BE_Z—+tHF=-A=+t-HItFE

Salaries,
allowances Share
Directors’ and other based
fee benefits payments Total
e RN WA 5
BN REMEF] HERZ A7 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT THT THIT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi FEMEE - - 1,849 1,849
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly RS L+ 120 8 2,334 2,462
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BREZLHE 180 - 233 413
Mr. Lau Man Kit BIEEE 120 44 233 397
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta &% £ 120 - 233 353
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUFEHTEE
Mr. Wong Chak Keung (Note 1) BRRALE (WiET) 58 - 233 291
Ms. Chai Mei Ping e 120 - 233 353
Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk EEMLE 120 - 233 353
Mr. Ong King Keung (Note 2] FHRgE (Hit2) 33 - - 33
871 50 5,581 6,504
Notes: 5t -
1. Resigned on 23 September 2016. 1. RZE—RFLAZ-ZT+=H&HFE-
2.  Appointed on 22 December 2016. 2. WRIE—R"E+-_AZ+-HEZfF-

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018

HE—

11.

E-NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals in the Group with the highest
emoluments, none (2017: three) are the directors of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed above. The
emoluments of the remaining five individuals (2017: two),
are as follows:

11.

ERFAR

AEELERSHMAREEH BE(ZF
—tF ZR)ARAEF HFMER L
NHEE-BRTREB(ZE—LF ZH)A
BZ T :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

THT FHT

Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 2,534 1,156
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 90 36
2,624 1,192

Analysis of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and other employees) by emolument
range is as follows:

hERSFMABR (BREFLRAMESR)
ZEHBIREMBE Z AT

Number of employees

EEAH
2018 2017
—®-N\F —T—tF
Not exceeding HK$ 1,000,000 1,000,000 7T A A 5 3

Exceeding HK$1,500,000 but
not exceeding HK$2,000,000
Exceeding HK$2,000,000

3@ 1,500,000/ T8
T i#E3B2,000,000/% 7T = 1
##3®2,000,000/% 7T

- 1

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, during the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017, no directors waived any emoluments.

%

REBEEZE_T-—N\FEZT—-—tF=H
+—BHUEFERN AEEVERAA K
SEFMWAE (BEES)INEN ERE
EMBAEE 2 BESIERBER 2 FE-
N RBE T NER_T—+F=
A=+—HLtFERN BESEEWEMLN
-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

12. TAXATION 12. IRIA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
The taxation charge recognised RIBRABR BB HEE:
in profit or loss comprises:
Current tax BVEARR 18
The PRC Tl 1,574 1,001
Over provision in prior years mE RS (728) -
846 1,001

No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the current year’s taxable profits has been set-off by
previous year's loss (2017: Nil).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

12. TAXATION (Continued) 12. RIA (&)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as follows:

RERBIARGRA BRI ZRBATE
BEBRMT

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Loss before taxation BT Al E 18 (10,542) (58,615)
Tax at the respective applicable tax rate REMBEABEGEZHE (1,411) (9,591)
Income not subject to taxation RN (4,600) (136)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose N HBIER B RE 2 M 7,169 9,423
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss AERTIBEER W E 948 1,828
Tax effect of prior year’s tax loss utilised RAFEESABATFEHIEERE
in this year 2GR (596) (603)
Tax effect of temporary difference not AR EZBIUBE
recognised 64 80
Over provision in prior years B F B REE (728) -
Taxation charged for the year REEHIBZ H 846 1,001
Deferred tax assets not recognised RERELEBIHEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses arising in the PRC and Hong Kong of
approximately HK$12,090,000" (2017:
HK$10,300,000) and approximately HK$42,928,000
(2017: HK$57,568,000) respectively available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits stream. Under current tax
regulation, tax losses arising in the PRC can be carried
forward for five years from the year in which the
respective loss arose while the tax losses arising in Hong
Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

RBEMR AEBRERETELEEZ
APAHIEEES 412,090,000 &
7T (ZF—+14%:10,300,0007% 7T) & 49
42,928,000 Tt (ZF —+ & :
57,568,000/ 7T) A] f#ft A F K 85 K 5
A o piy HA A TEORI R 2O A SRR - # S h
APRABEBEEIELERIAEE -RE
BOIRBAN REahBEzREBREAR
ERBREELFREEFIFAEE MKRA
FREZRABEAAERAEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

12.

13.

14.

TAXATION (Continued) 12. RIA (&)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised RERELHEAE
At the end of the reporting period, undistributed profits of REEBRR WERARZARD IKEN
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$34,497,000 #m34,497,0008 T (ZF — &
(2017: HK$36,728,000). Withholding tax resulting from 36,728,000/% 7T ) ° fis 1% % [m Hp B LA SN 2
the distribution of such profits would amount ZRARRREL DR BIDIRE @R
approximately to HK$3,450,000 (2017: HK$3,673,000) FIEA+ 2 BB A A3,450,000% 7T (=
if they are distributed to holding companies/shareholders T —+4:3,673,000% 7T) ° AT R
outside of PRC. However, no deferred tax liabilities have RRREGIZEMNBE AR 2R EHE AR
been recognised in this respect as the Company controls RABETERA R B RDIRZE &)
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been WL ERELEH ARG
determined that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.
DIVIDEND 13. KR
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a EFVTERRNBE-_Z—-—N\F=A
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil). =+ —BIEFEZEARE (ZT—+5F:
/) o
LOSS PER SHARE 14. BSEREGE
Basic and diluted loss per share BREARBEER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK cents HK cents
A4l il
Total basic and diluted loss per share BREARREEEIRARE (0.31) (1.76)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
Basic and diluted loss per share (Continued)
The loss and weighted average number of ordinary shares

used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
are as follows:

14. BREGE (&)
SRERRBEEE (B

RAGESREARBEEERZERRE
BRI R T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Loss for the year attributable to owners RARIHEE ANBIERFEEEE
of the Company (10,542) (60,139)
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+tF

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share

TR EBREANEEERL
EER N BB

3,421,538,679  3,421,538,679

The incremental shares from assumed exercise of share
options granted by the Company and conversion of the
Company's outstanding convertible bonds are excluded in
calculating the diluted loss per share during the year
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 because they are
antidilutive in calculating the diluted loss per share.

EAEBE_FT-N\FR_T—tF=H
=+ HUEFESRETERFCMEGR
RARAEREZ BREETERAAT
) AR 1T {5 2 AJ 460 A1 2 088 3 38R T 488 0 2 B
 RASHEYAESREEIERARE
SEE -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. % BB R im

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
HE LT \F=A=1—HIFEF

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
improvement machinery ~ Computers equipment vehicles Total
BE B
NxEE  HERESE Bl HERRE RE Eh)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL
Cost RS
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~EEA-A 26,368 19,882 1,090 6,340 1,797 85,477
Additions NE 276 1,423 - 103 - 1,802
Written off i - (129 (429) (231 - (789)
Currency realignment ERER (1,619) (1,221) (50) (354) - (3,244)
At 31 March 2017 and RZE—tE-A=+-H
1 April 2017 k=E—+tENA—H 25,025 19,955 615 5,858 1,797 53,250
Additions hE = = - 54 - 54
Weitten off i - (27) = (15) = (42)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (274) - - (274)
Currency realignment ERAE 2,672 2,154 37 632 - 5,495
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=+-A 27,697 22,082 378 6,529 1,797 58,483
Accumulated depreciation RiE
At 1 April 2016 RZE-"EEA-A 16,448 6,072 1,002 3,787 1,048 28,357
Charge for the year FEXH 5,118 2,050 45 1,204 449 8,866
Written off W - (54) (409) (180) - (623)
Currency realignment 5 A (1,131) (420) (43) (253) - (1,847)
At 31 March 2017 and RZE—t§=A=1-H
1 April 2017 RZT—tEMmA-A 20,435 7,648 585 4,578 1,497 34,753
Charge for the year FEZH 4,666 2,087 2 1,105 300 8,160
Weitten off iz = (11) = (11 = (22)
Eliminated upon disposal of subsidiaries & 18 2 7185 44 = = (274) = = (274)
Currency realignment ERHE 2,465 946 35 557 - 4,003
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=+-A 27,566 10,670 358 6,229 1,797 46,620
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=-A=+-A 131 11,412 20 300 - 11,863
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tE=-A=+-A 4,590 12,307 20 1,280 300 18,497
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

16. GOODWILL 16. &
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Cost R
At the beginning of the year F7) 20,718 20,718
Disposal of subsidiaries &M B R A (8,295) -
At the end of the year FR 12,423 20,718
Accumulated impairment losses iR EEE
At the beginning of the year F 4 (19,768) (19,768)
Eliminated upon disposal of subsidiaries k=i oy =N 8,295 -
At the end of the year FR (11,473) (19,768)
Carrying amount FREE
At the end of the year FR 950 950

The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) was allocated to cash-generating units

e REE (KM RARERBE) 2D
REReELEM ARWOT:

as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FTER FHET
Cinema business — Cinema Group whiEE —ExhEE 950 950

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

oc



22

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Part of the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Raxco
Assets Corp. (“Raxco”) during the year ended 31 March
2011, which was engaged in new media exploitations
business. For Raxco, the management considers that it is
difficult to set a concrete time-line for the development in
this segment, and future revenue cannot be reliably
projected, full impairment of the goodwill was made in the
year ended 31 March 2014.

Part of the goodwill arose from the acquisition of tt = & %
Bt ( £)8) AR A A ("Shanghai Bingo”) together with its
subsidiaries (“Cinema Group”) during the year ended 31
March 2013, which was engaged in cinema business.

During the year, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of goodwill associated with Cinema Group by
reference to value-in-use. The calculations used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Company covering a five-year period.
For the Cinema Group, management believes that the
recoverable amount would exceed its carrying amount as
at 31 March 2018 and therefore, no impairment is
necessary.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

B (&)

BHE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—8LFE
DEBEAB BN ENEEAEELK L
Raxco Assets Corp. ([Raxco ) * &t
RaxcomM 5 ERERAEURERZD
HE N AEREER BT TR B R K
e BHREBE-_T—WF=A=+—H
I FEREEIEL 2 BURE -

BE T =F=-A=1+—HILLFE
DREBELARBRECREHBZILSE
Fh(LB)BERAA (ke LE]RE
MEBAR ([EXRER]) -

RAFER AEEL2EERBEERRT
HREZREEAB I HE Z AT IREI SR -
IR EE R ERNEARR A EE B4 ER
ETRFEHMzUBRBERE 2R RER
Bl-REEREEMS  BEEER/AKE
CEBBRER T - \F=A=+—H
ZHREE Y ERENE-

EREEEMEAZEEZMRE:

2018 2017

—E-)\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$' 000

FTET FHET

Growth rate BRE 3% 3%
Discount rate Bh38 = 15% 15%

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

17.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. RBELFMRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FExT THET
Unlisted shares I L5
Share of net assets DIEFEE (3) -
Due from an associate JE WLt & 1~ B FROR 6 -
3 -
The following list contains the particulars of the Group’s TREEREEB S QRIS
associate:
Proportion of ownership interest
RERESLA
Form of Place of Particulars of
business incorparation and  issued and Group's effective  Held by the Held by Principal
Name of associate structure operation paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries activity
ER12AY8 BEITRER AEE
I INTE ABERYA HENE WA ERED ARAFE MBRARE IEED
Goal Creation Incorporated Hong Kong 100 shares of 48% - 48% Investing in
Game Limited iz v i HK$1 each Virtual Reality
BRERARAR 100 and Mixed
GRR1A T AR Reality Praject
REEHERREAR
£5ER
(a) Fair value of Investments (a) REZAFE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s RERPEHEB AEEZBERF
associate is a private company and there was no RILARFBERBKRE L ETSEH
quote market price available for the investment. -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(b) Aggregate information of associate that is not

individually material

17. RBIELTHKRE (F)

(b) BRIFEARBMEQTAZELESR

2018 2017

—E-N\F —TEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

The Group’s share of profit or loss AEBZHIERR (3) -
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBRZHE R E]

Group’s investment in an associate WiIRE 7 REEERE 3 -

(c) Amount due from an associate

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The balance
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and

approximate to their fair value.

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The aging of the Group’s trade receivables based on the

invoice date is analysed as follows:

(c) FEUEEE AT %8
PRI A N T 7 HOE B SRR - Tt
EBRBREREE  HEBTIET
HEREEATEEES-

18. FBURAR®R

AEERBEER B2 BRERFRER DN
LA

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET TET

Within 30 days 30H IR 1,058 894
31-60 days 31£260H 107 65
61-90 days 61290H 50 9
Over 90 days S0R M £ 62 -
1,277 968

m ANNUAL REPORT £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. FBURERR (&)
For cinema business and filmed entertainment, new media M EB AR BRIRGE  FEBHFRE R
exploitations and licensing business segment, the credit BHAREB IS AEBEETERP
terms granted by the Group to its customers normally ZEEH—RBERSRKWEI208 T~ %
ranged from COD (cash-on-delivery) to 120 days. The AN 5= B B S H R W (O] 8 R TR A R R AR
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding ER-BEAEEEAETHRABRAL-
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by FT B FE U BR SRTE EAR — F A I [E] -
senior management. All trade receivables are expected to
be recovered within one year.
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At the beginning of year FH) - 18,981
Bad debts written-off AR MEH - (18,981)
The aging analysis of trade receivables based on the I w48 A2 E Bl sk i 7 3R FE 2 FE W
invoice date that are neither individually nor collectively BEBIEREHH VEROTOT
considered to be impaired are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Neither past due nor impaired I %58 B ORI (E 1,058 894
Past due but not impaired: 2 %80 HAME MR (A -
Less than 1 month past due B ERTE A AR 107 65
1 to 3 months past due #H1 =31 A 50 9
More than 3 months past due B HASME A A £ 62 -
1,277 968

Receivables at 31 March 2018 and 2017 that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

R-B-\FER-_F—tF=ZA=1+—8"
3 4 380 HY KR B2 8 R IR S 0 4 T HR 4
Ritr e BEF AR

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Receivables at 31 March 2018 and 2017 that were past
due but not impaired related to customers that had a
good track record with the Group or with appropriate
impairment allowance accounted for. Based on past
experience, management believes that no further
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of these
balances as there had not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral over
these balances.

19. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

18. FEUTAES (&)

R-FB-\FER-_F—tF=A=+—8"
B 8 8B R A 2 R MR T B — HE B
SEBERHRHEHEIEEEERERE
ReEPERE-REBSELR ANEEE
RWESREERAERIDBPIE A 28K
[l - & 32 [EHR 15 B A % B AR IE L RS
BMEREFB - NEELTELLXSERFTHT
A8 m o

19. HEIHRE - BReRAFR

L]

2018 2017

—E-)\F ZE—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Other receivables H At & W kIR 496 1,559
Deposits and prepayments (Note) e RFANRIE (Fi7) 29,507 2,776
30,003 4,335

Note:

ANNUAL
2017/18

Included in the balance was a deposit paid of approximately
RMB19,715,000 (equivalent to HK$24,604,000) to be
refunded. During the year, the Group has entered into
intention contracts in order to obtain marketing researches
for several investing projects. The Group has paid a deposit
of RMB32,000,000 (equivalent to HK$39,936,000). The
Group has terminated the investment plans, the vendor
agreed to repay the deposit. During the year, an amount of
approximately RMB12,285,000 (equivalent to
HK$15,332,000) has been refunded from the vendor.

According to the contracts, the balance has been past due
since 29 March 2018. The management believes that no
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of the
balance and the balance was still considered fully
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral over the
balance.

After the reporting date, the amount of approximately

RMB19,715,000 (equivalent to HK$24,604,000) has
been fully refunded from the vendor.

REPORT &3

Hat - BREREFREZENEESHARE
19,715,0007T (#HE 7 24,604,000
BIL) e RFER - ARBERIYERA
HARZEIREHB G LHEME - A
£EE X MR E AR 32,000,000
7t (M & 7 39,936,000% 7t ) « A&
oI REE BEHRBEER
T RER - BHEREZBHARE
12,285,000t (H#E 77 15,332,000
BTT)

REAEN - BHHE T N\F=H
“thRRBRBH-BEEERRBAM
ERGTIEREEBRERIDBI 2H
U [B] o A 5 (8] 37 48 gt 4 R 4 B (R IR
e

P& R BHERESBOARE
19,715,0007t( #8 & 24,604,000
BT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

19. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(Continued)

The amount of other receivables, deposits and
prepayments expected to be recovered or recognised as
expense after more than one year is approximately
HK$957,000 (2017:881,000). All other receivables,
deposits and prepayments are expected to be recovered
or recognised as expense within one year.

20. PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR PROCUREMENT FOR
INVESTMENT OF CINEMA BUSINESS

Pursuant to the announcement for the joint venture
agreement (“JV agreement”) dated 9 June 2011, a
subsidiary of the Company entered into a JV agreement
with CineChina Limited (“CineChina”) for the investment of
cinema business in the PRC.

The payments were made to a director of a 70% owned
subsidiary, who is also a director and shareholder of
CineChina, and to CineChina, a 30% shareholder of the
above-mentioned subsidiary for the purpose of
materialising the JV agreement:

19.

20.

HtiEK®RE - #eRAMTR
R (&)

TR EAR — S 1R ] U [0 Bl AR AR A S B EL A
FBRFE B RBENRBEZEOS
957,000/ 7t (== —+ 4 : 881,000/
TT) e PR H i U IR - & R AN R
IR —FARE R ER R

EﬂiﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁZ%

BEHHA-_ZT——FNALEBRAEW
#([6EHBRDTBZAE XRF—FR
W E A ECineChina Limited
([CineChina ] ) st £ #f B35 & &2 Pt £ 75 5]

A A

NRDEEESEREM N FARAEN,
TO% X ZWBARIZ —REE (ZES
M ACineChinaz EE MK E) X
CineChina (# & L il iff B A 7130% # =
ZREE) 28

2018 2017
—B-NF —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET

Amount paid to a director of a subsidiary XN F—ZWEARESE
2 FIE - 16,979
Amount paid to CineChina 3 5} ¥ CineChina 2 318 2,478 26,786
Amount paid to an independent third party S F—&BUE=H 2 FEB 3,315 3,245
5,793 47,010

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

20. PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR PROCUREMENT FOR 20. ABRBEERBRASHIMTZR

INVESTMENT OF CINEMA BUSINESS (Continued)

Under the prevailing legal requirements in the PRC,
certain restrictions are imposed on foreign investors for
taking up majority stake in cinema business in the PRC. In
accordance with legal opinion from PRC lawyer, the
approval for engaging in the foregoing business by the
subsidiaries of the Company has not been obtained from
the respective PRC authorities during the year ended 31
March 2012 and the organising of the above cinema
business had not been completed at 31 March 2012.
The director of a subsidiary, CineChina and an Independent
third party (collectively, “these parties”) held the fund for
the Group and would settle the cost incurred in
procurement of the investment of cinema business in the
PRC.

By an internal group reorganization the capital of Lt =& &
Bt ( £)8) A R A & ("Shanghai Bingo”) was transferred
from a domestic enterprise to a sino-foreign joint venture
enterprise to comply with the relevant regulatory
requirement for foreign investors to operate cinema
business in the PRC during the year ended 31 March
2013. The Group legally owned 75% equity interests in
Shanghai Bingo to operate the cinema business by mid-
February 2013. The results of the cinema projects,
including Linan and Hangzhou cinema projects, legally
owned by Shanghai Bingo are consolidated into that of the
Group after completion of the internal group
reorganization. Pursuant to the agreement entered into
between the Group and these parties on 6 December
2012, these parties in principle agreed to act as a
conduit of payment on behalf of the Group for the
development of the cinema business in the PRC. These
parties have substantially utilized the funds for the cinema
business through their connection (the “Connection”) in
the PRC.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2017/18
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BIEBERITHPEERZZRT IEKREER
FREBAZRESABIBESXIET
PR - RIEP BRI 2 EZEER ECEY
BT —FZA=Z+—HLEFEARQA
MEBAR W RERBETRE %ﬁt/ﬁiﬁ%i
MER B MR EBZEBTIERZ
T——HF=ZA=+—BHHARTK B
A]E = CineChina X — 2B % = H (4
BIZEITNAREAEERFES I
GEMNEEPREMESEE ZRA-

HE-_Z—=F=-A=1+—RHLFEE &
BARSEERSEHA EeEFR (L8 ER
AR (B8] 2BRBE—RRNELE
EREE—RPINEEDLE NETINERE
BENTFRCETEBZBREERT -
NEBEEFAL S LB75%BHRE AT
CE SR AP AR EYRER T
RS EEEMRAE ke EEEEBEEZ
BE¥RIEE (BRERZEMMEZRER)
CEBGAFALREBEE - RELAEE
HZETNAR_TE——F+=-A~HF
M2 REFEHNFRERE - HER
BRPEYREBREAEBIAREZ
FREABBEZETOFETPRZHER
wHMERE)) FEERYRELDA
RBRED -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
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—E-NF=ZA=+—HIFE

20. PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR PROCUREMENT FOR

21,

INVESTMENT OF CINEMA BUSINESS (Continued)

During the year, the amount paid to a director of a
subsidiary of approximately RMB13,652,000 (equivalent
to HK$16,979,000 as at 31 March 2017) and an
amount paid to CineChina of approximately
RMB19,720,000 (equivalent to HK$24,449,000 as at
31 March 2017) were collected.

As at 31 March 2017, approximately RMB33,372,000
equivalent to approximately HK$37,590,000, which has
been fully collected during the year, has been settled by
the Connection (“the Connection Payables”) and was
included in other payables of the Group. The Group, these
parties and the Connection have principally agreed to
offset the funds held by these parties with the amount
payable to the Connection upon finalization of all the
construction and decoration cost incurred and paid. The
outstanding balance owed by these parties will deem to be
settled upon the execution of the aforementioned offset.

FILMS IN PROGRESS AND FILM RIGHTS

(a) Films in progress

20.

21.

MRBERRERASHIAFZR
R (%)

REAFE BENT-—RMRBARIZ —%%
FZHIEHARYN3,652,0007T (HHE
RZZE—-—ttF=ZA=+—HB8
16,979,000/% 7t) & E f F CineChina #J
HIBHAR®19,720,0007 (HERK =
T—tF=H=+—HHK24,449,000%
7T) 2 W E e

R-ZE—+tF=ZA=+—H BHEAKES
B AR®33,372,0007T (HHE R4
37,590,000/ 7t) ([ %8 @4 - 5%
H])  MABKBEERAFERZHKE -
W EFHARE B E M ER I NEE - %
SR EBERKRI AT NEE
PrBEEEERXN 2 BERRERAR I
EN B BEE 2RI BEZFITONFE
BRZED #1T LMKHER  ZFRTNT#E
RZABEBHERIECEE-

ERECRERRE

() EREY

2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Cost A
At the beginning of the year F9) 9,264 9,264
Disposals of subsidiaries & E R A (9,264) -
At the end of the year FI8 - 9,264
Deduct: Accumulated amortization W Rt B RBESE
and impairment losses
At the beginning of year F7) 9,264 9,264
Eliminated upon disposals of subsidiaries 7 & [ & 2 &6 ¥ 5 (9,264) -
At the end of year Far - 9,264
Net book value IREFEE
At the end of year Far - -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

21. FILMS IN PROGRESS AND FILM RIGHTS (Continued) 21, EREXRERNEE (&)

(a)

(b)

ANNUAL
2017/18

Films in progress (Continued) (a)

The film in progress was measured at cost less any
identifiable impairment loss.

During the year, High Amuse Limited and its
subsidiaries of the Group which owned the film in
progress related to CJ7 were disposed to a related
company, The Star Overseas Limited (note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements).

HREY (H)

75 BT § 42 A A 4 100 7 4 B
ERHE

FR AEECHEELERAARE
BERBRI7TRHERHETNONEL
AET-HEBAREEBINGR
NAE (FRAEMBRERMEISL) -

Film rights (b) B
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Cost A
At the beginning of the year F9) 42,554 42,554
Disposals of subsidiaries & E R A (6,729) -
At the end of the year FaR 35,825 42,554
Deduct: Accumulated amortization W Rt B RBESE
and impairment losses
At the beginning of year F7) 42,554 42,554
Eliminated upon disposals of subsidiaries 7 & [ & 2 &6 % 5 (6,729) -
35,825 42,554
At the end of year T - -
Net book value REFE
At the end of year F - -

During the year, High Amuse Limited and its
subsidiaries of the Group which owned the film rights
in CJ7 Super Q@ Team were disposed to a related
company, The Star Overseas Limited (note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements).

REPORT &3
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22,

23.

E-NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 BeRB&FED
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Cash at banks and in hand RITNFEIBS 95,995 125,021
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on BITHSRENTARITERFE Y 28
daily bank deposit rates. The fair values of the Group’s AEGIMAB - REBR-_ZT—NFR =
bank balances and cash at 31 March 2018 and 2017 E—+tF=ZA=+—HZRITEHERS
approximate their corresponding carrying amounts. ZAFEHEAEEE REERS -
As at 31 March 2018, deposits and cash placed with RZZE—N\FZA=+—8 ERRFPEH
banks in Mainland China amounted to approximately NRITZ2HFEZTERLSEH ALY
HK$29,937,000 (2017: HK$62,161,000). Remittance 29,937,000 T (=% — £ & :
of funds out of Mainland China is subject to relevant rules 62,161,000/%87T) * & & & h H N
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated 78 5 H B A M R A8 6 2 4B B8 SINE B IR
by the government of Mainland China. I B2 #5 1 PAT AR BR -
TRADE PAYABLES 23. EFIR®

The aging of the Group’s trade payables based on the
invoice date is analysed as follows:

AREERBEHZAHENENERZEERD
M :

2018 2017

—E-)\F —E—tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Within 30 days 30HUA 1,500 965
1,500 965

Payment terms with suppliers are generally within 30
days.

IR 2 M RER — AR B30 AR -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

24. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24. Eke - HMECGRERE

ACCRUALS AR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Customer’s deposits and receipts BPke RIEMGRIAE (MET)
in advance (Note 1) 8,523 15,017

Other payables and accruals HAth [l < 5138 I FE 5T RRR

(Note 2) (Ktet2) 8,914 49,395
17,437 64,412

Notes: K&t :

1. Included in the balance was a prepaid amount in the 1. RBREOEEPREE ROHENRELD
membership card by the customers of approximately 7,817,000 7T - B B & 418 R 4B 7 2
HK$7,817,000. The balance will be recognized as income ARERARSEEEAN @ r S5t 2
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to B RER AU A -
the Group and these benefits can be measured reliably.

2.  The amount as at 31 March 2017 included payable to the 2. RZZE—+HF=ZRA=+—H ZsERE
Connection of approximately HK$37,590,000 which has JIE <1 Bk 92 48 4% 2 X1E £937,590,0007%
been fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2018. T EBEREEZZE-N\F=ZA=+—H1t
Details are described in note 20. FRBBHER BN E20 -

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 25. A[BERIRF

On 22 February 2010, the Company entered into the
service agreement with Mr. Chiau whereby the Company
appointed Mr. Chiau as an executive director of the
Company and Mr. Chiau accepted the appointment with
prescribed duties for an initial term of five year from 1
June 2010. In consideration of the performance by Mr.
Chiau of his duties for the Company, the Company shall,
as a remuneration package to issue the convertible bonds
to Mr. Chiau with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$45 million. Details are described in note 32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability
and equity components. The fair value of the liability
component, which was determined by independent
professional valuers, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited on
the date of issue, is the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate of 16.73% and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms,
but without the conversion option. The residual amount is
assigned as the equity component and is included in
equity.

The movement of the liability component and equity
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set out

25.

RERS ()

AgmkEFEEmERD A E Nk ES
Mo BEHONBETEHZAFE (BB
VEXRHEMBRRTERARNEE)S
EHFMEBEEAXRRERERERHN X
16.73% 8h 3 2 TR {E - I LA M R R SRR 1
RBAMRBRSRE X B EERE -8R
MO AEDE D  Wat AR -

Ey ARBESEEDD RERBH 2
BT

below:
Liability Equity
Component Component
=N g:i%s) s E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
At 1 April 2016 RZFE—RFEOHA—H 14,889 76,520
Imputed interest charged EEHERE 2,728 -
At 31 March 2017 RZFE—+F=H=+—H 17,617 76,520
Imputed interest charged EETHERN A 3,166 -
At 31 March 2018 RZE—-—NF=A=+—H 20,783 76,520
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—tfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Mature later than 1 year —F1E 2 H 20,783 17,617

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

26. B&&E

As at 31 March 2018
R-ZE-\E=A=1+-H

26. SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2017
R-ZE—+tF=HA=+—H

Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
ROHA HE RiAEE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each BREEC.04E T2 EER
Authorised: ETE
At the beginning and EMREL
at the end of the year 5,000,000 200,000 5,000,000 200,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each SRAECO4E T EBR
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At the beginning and FORFR
at the end of the year 3,421,539 136,861 3,421,539 136,861
Capital management EXREHE

Capital comprises of share capital and reserves stated on
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
owners of the Company and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

ERBRGAMBRRBRAET 2 KA
LiFH - AEEEEEARAZERBABRNR
[EAEE R MEERSEL
e < AR BR B IR E KT H RS E
A K2 AR 75 € (B A B A & B A AR ER
BEBRARAEAANTRERY HE
R A AR

=S I [

TREE

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher
owners’ returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group maintains its net asset position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 26.

Capital management (Continued])

The net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 March 2018 and 2017

was as follows:

B (7F)

EXEE(B)

R-E-N\FR-F—tF=A=+—8

ZEFABEHERLLERINT

2018 2017
—2-\F —T ¥
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
k23 FExT FHET
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables JE 1T BR 3K 23 1,500 965
Deposits received, other payables ElR e« HAih BN IR
and accruals N e FIE 24 17,437 64,412
Tax payables EANERE] 1,336 1,539
20,273 66,916
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 25 20,783 17,617
Total debt BERT 41,056 84,533
Less: Cash and cash equivalents HWRERIBESEEY 22 (95,995) (125,021)
Net asset BEEFE (54,939) (40,488)
Total equity (including EmiesE (B
non-controlling interests) IEE AR %) 104,828 112,248
Net debt-to-equity ratio FREEERE X N/A T3 H N/ATEM

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirement.

RRA R R EAE M ERRETRINEE i

ZERBRERS

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

27. RESERVES 27. &%
The Company ARF
Equity
component Share
Share Contributed of convertible options Accumulated
premium surplus bonds reserve losses Total
TRRES
REE  R4B% BEEN2 RRERE  RHER @t
HKE000  HK$00O  HK$OOO  HKSOOO  HKEOOO  HK$OOO
TER TER TEL TEL TEL TEL
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~¥NA-H 420,810 1,988 76,520 76,365  (599,734]  (24,051)
Equity settled share option DRREE  BiRERHE

arrangement - - - 35,240 - 35,240
Lapse of share options BIRERN - - - (9,510) 9,510 -
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - 47,177)  ([47,177)
At 31 March 2017 RZZ-+5=A=t—H 420810 1,988 76,520 102,095  (637,401) (35,988
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+ENA-A 420,810 1,988 76,520 102,095 (637,401)  (35,988)
Lapse of share options BIRELN - = = (2,410) 2,410 =
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (8,049) (8,049)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=A=+—-H 420,810 1,988 76,520 99,685  (643,040)  (44,037)

At 31 March 2018, no reserves is available for
distribution to owners of the Company (2017: Nil).

The share premium is arising from the issue of shares of

the Company.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company at the time of the Group

reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 28. MERRiEETR)

Pursuant to resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors,
eligible employees and participants who have contributed
to the Group and will expire on 14 August 2022. Under
the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to certain employees of the Group and any
distributor, contractor, business partner, promoter, service
provider, customer, supplier, consultants, agents and
advisers or any person who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group in
recognition of their contribution to the Group.

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the maximum number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued upon the
exercise of all options which initially shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
adoption of the Scheme and thereafter, if refreshed shall
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue (“Scheme Mandate
Limit") as at the date of approval of the refreshed limit by
the Shareholders. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
number of Shares to be issued upon the exercise of all the
Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and other share option schemes must not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the Scheme Mandate Limit. The number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in aggregate within any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue,
without prior approval from the Company's shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non- executive directors or any of his, her or
its associates in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of offer of the option exceeding the higher of
0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue and with a value in
excess of HK$5 million must be approved by the
Company’'s shareholders.

RER-_ZT——F/\ATRHABBZIRE
R EEDBEFT AEREERBRAL
BFLER 2 8E AEERAEER
et E ([ZAt8)) ARAaER =%
“ZFENATEARER - REZTE AR
REFEGARAKEE TERENAREAS
WA ABRE EBBH BEA RBEH
R FEF HER FHRARERER
FEFE2RNBERARE AAAEER/A
SEELERZEMATRLBERE
RERE/AEBELER -

RIZGEM LM AR R - HPT B AR T (£
Al aE AL B R BT 2 BRI BB LR H
AATGEBEMAZTEE RS HITRD
10% MEREMEH A SEERR
HEEHRBEE B S EHTRMI0% ([F
EIRERR]) -BE LXA AFAR
YREZAT 8] N o B AR ET B B W R 1T
ErEERETENS TRTZRDEE
THRBE TR ZEETRN30% - RIERE
BAER 8 2 RRE Rz B ER T E5
AFHEIRERBEAR - EREARRBBRRE
FREZBERT REM+—EABERA
A EEAERIA TR B 2 B AR R P
REM#HE  TEBBARRCETRD
1% RBERHBREBHL(B2EE
B+ —@EANRAAR TEERRLBEL
FRTEFAREAZEMBEALZE
Pt - EHBOARR D ETRNO.1%HE
{8%5,000,0008 T (LA&=EKE) - 8
W IRREZR N BIAR R B o
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance
of the share option to such date as determined by the
board of directors of the Company and the exercise price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Details of specific categories of options and the fair value
of options are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the share options granted under the Schemes
and any other schemes and movements in such holdings
during the year were as follow:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

28. MREXiERTE (/&)

BRHZBREGERRL ASHEA21H
N EOBRENIBTRER BR
BUREMNBEREEAEEARAESTS
BEE<BAMBYARBETE BITEES
AEEROARBBRMNE L ARz KT
B: (I ARFROHNERFEL B AR E
2 XA 2T E i) A2 BB
HE=fF2z&2%"

BREOER R BRI MBI AFEZFBEH
Rz e M BwmRMEI2 -

TR ZEFEMEMEMFERTRE
ZERENEZEFHFBMT

Number of shares issuable under options held

BEFMEBRETFRITZROBE
Balance at Balance at
Share 1 April 31 March
option 2017 2018
type R=-ZE—tF R-E-N\F
Category BRE A—H Granted Lapsed =A=+-—H
5l BE 28R R ERM 2
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
TR TR TR TR TR
Directors - 2012A 21,000 - (21,000) -
2014A 15,000 - - 15,000
2015A 23,000 - - 23,000
2016A 45,000 - - 45,000
2017A 34,000 - - 34,000
Employees =] 2012A 10,000 = (10,000) =
Advisors E 2014A 277,140 - - 277,140
2015A 132,000 - - 132,000
2015B 50,000 - - 50,000
2016A 294,000 - - 294,000
2017A 125,000 - - 125,000
1,026,140 - (31,000) 995,140
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE_FE—N\F=ZA=1+—HIFE

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 28. REBRIETE ()
The following share options were outstanding under the HE_Z—LtF=A=1T—"HILFE %
Schemes and any ather schemes during the year ended Eit B RAEMEGF EIE T ARITR 2B
31 March 2017: ReREN T

Number of shares issuable under options held

RIEPTFF B AR ] T 317 2 Iein BB

Balance at Balance at

Share 1 April 31 March

option 2016 2017

type MZ_T—X4F RZE—+F

Category i A MmA—H Granted Lapsed —A=+—H
Ll R 2 KRR [ [ &

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

F % F g T T

Directors z= 2012A 24,000 - (3,000) 21,000

20138 125,000 - (125,000) -

2014A 18,000 - (3,000) 15,000

2015A 26,000 - (3,000) 23,000

2016A - 48,000 (3,000) 45,000

2017A - 34,000 - 34,000

Employees (== 2012A 10,000 - - 10,000

Advisors fE8 2011B 9,000 - (9,000) -

2014A 277,140 - - 277,140

2015A 132,000 - - 132,000

2015B 50,000 - - 50,000

2016A - 294,000 - 294,000

2017A - 125,000 - 125,000

671,140 501,000 (146,000) 1,026,140

The Company has not granted any share options and the ARRREBE=TE—N\F=A=+—8I1

Company did not recognize any expense as share-based EJ*IEE&HMEH%HX%&$ Gl g

payments for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: EH%EJEZ{’EELAHX@EEWZH (=

HK$35,240,000). L —+4:35,240,000/% T ) °

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

29.

30.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Authorized but not contracted for:

Pursuant to the JV Agreement, the Group will agree to
advance a loan of not less than HK$25,000,000 and naot
more than HK$35,000,000 to Goal Creation Game
Limited for investment and development of relevant Virtual
Reality and Mixed Reality project (include those projects
related to Lechuang) subject to and conditional upon the
terms and conditions set out in the JV Agreement.

29. BEX &I

CHUEB [ REQ -

RESEWH AEEEHR—BHTIR
25,000,000;% 7t & T~ i# 835,000,000
BALTHNERTESERERAR ARK
BENFEERERERIEAERER (8
EELAEHNIER)  EAETEE DR
P8 15K S R 1 RS2 B AR IR o

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. EEHKXIE
The Group as lessee AEBEREBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIEBR NEERDE 2 TR HEL
commitments for future minimum lease payments under SHNET 2 REKEHEE N FRERE
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties HERZH T :
which fall due as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Within one year —FRX 4,535 4,197
In the second to fifth year, inclusive E_FEENF
(BREEEME) 16,353 16,060
More than five years 3 1 F 10,552 13,149
31,440 33,406

Other than as disclosed above, the Group had no material
lease commitments outstanding at the end of reporting
period.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

31. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into

% 7
4

3. REATRRAERS

RAEPBmAREMEBOMMKRE &
S AEEBETTINERBFEALR

the following material related party and connected FERS -
transactions.
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEBEAESHM

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company's directors
as disclosed in note 10 is as follows:

TREBABZHH (BREMEI10MH
BEXNTARRES ZFR) W

2018 2017
=E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Directors’ fee, salaries, allowances EEMe e RUR
and other benefits E M EF 954 923
Share-based payments VARG /B0 2 9 3K - 5,581
954 6,504
(b) Connected transactions (b) BEEATRS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Name of connected persons Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
BEALER REME FHET TET
The Star Overseas Limited Consultancy service fee paid by - 420
(Note 1) the Group in relation to
the film production
EEBINERAT REBRYHRIEXNZERRBE
(K1aE1)
The Star Overseas Limited Acquisition of subsidiaries from the 750 -
(Note 1) Group (note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements)
EEBINERAA WEASENE AR (A8 B#HE
(Ktat1) Hiat34)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

31. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

3. MEALTRAERS (E)

(Continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with connected parties (c) EEBEEALTZzRBEES
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—tF
Name of connected persons Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALTER ReEME TR THETT
CineChina Limited Receivable of the Group for payment 2,337 26,786
(Note 2) (#1:2) for procurement for investment
of Cinema Business
REBERIRER R 2 K
U 2 I8
Mr. Yin Gang (Note 3] Receivable of the Group for payment - 16,979

NS sE 4 (HfaE3)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

for procurement for investment of

Cinema Business

fEd 2 TR

Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly, a director of The Star
Overseas Limited, is an executive director of the
Company since 6 January 2014. Ms. Chow is also
a sister of Mr. Chiau Sing Chi who is a director of
the Company. Accordingly, Ms. Chow is considered
a connected person during the years ended 31
March 2018 and 2017 under GEM Listing Rules.

CineChina Limited holds 30% equity interest in a
subsidiary of the Company and it is considered a
connected person under the GEM Listing Rules.
The details of the connected transaction is listed
in note 20.

Mr. Yin Gang is a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. He is considered a connected person
under the GEM Listing Rule. The details of the
connected transaction is listed in note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 32. LIRS ERZAR
The Company has the convertible bonds and share option ARABRAEEES EE MEMIEMHA
scheme for directors, employees and advisors of the MR E S R IEREG 8- AT ARG 5 N IE
Group. Details of the convertible bonds and share options PetEz BT

are as follows:

Convertible bonds R ES

Issuer: The Company BITA: PAN/NE]

Principal amount: HK$45 million in aggregate on issue RNEH: RETEHBHONEER
date and the outstanding amount as 45,000,000% 7t * i 7
at 31 March 2018 was HK$30 ZE-NFE=A=+—H
million i 8 42 230,000,000/

TTH AR R E 7

Issue date: 1 June 2010 FITHHE: —E-ZFXHA—H

Maturity date: Ten years from the date of issue F|EAH : B 81T HHR T+

Interest: Zero coupon ME: TR

Conversion price: HK$0.136 per share (Note 1) HRR(E - HRR0.136%8 T (Kat1)

Share Option Scheme B E

Details of specific categories of options are as follow: FEREMBRESENT

The fair value of share options which were calculated by FER_EXERECEBENGE 2 BRE

binomial option pricing model with the following NEETERATRE:

assumptions:

Opion e B 20118 20128 20138 20148 2015h 20158 20164 20174

Grant e Atas 2082010 2382012 4102013 1742014 1372015 1192015 772018 332017

E-%F . 3z FmE 221 31 it 3 3tF
GE: NA=tzE +Am8 mf+ B LAtzE ARt-8 £ALE EE:
Number of options
raned HRRREE: 21000000 294,840,000 125,000,000 304,140,000 11,000,000 50000000 342000000 159,000,000
1562011- 2382012 4102013 1742014 1372015 1192015- 772016- 332017-
Bevseperot AR 1882018 282017 3102016 1642019 1272020 1092020 872021 232022
2cf It St “T-mE %-1f “2-1% it S
NA=tzEZ +Amgz BAttE A=Az ARt-RE LALEE
AE) ZR-tENAZTZH ZE-RFTAZE ZE-AEmATAE “RCREAATH “Ro-FLARA
Berie i il WD 49257 WODISBEE  HGD1BIAER HSD 36427 WD 2857 W0 2003 7 HS0 1857 KD 1357
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(1) (1)

Fair value: ATE HK$5,324,0003  HK$22,921,000% T HK$6,000000%7  HK$45,500000%7  HK$16,800,000% HK$4,800000%  HK$28,600,0007% T HK$8,640,000% 7T

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Option type:

Share price as at grant date:
Nature of the options:
Risk-free rate:

Expected life of the options:
Expected volatility:

Expected dividend yield:
Exercise multiple:

32. LI BEREZIR(E)

BT ()
MR R 2016A 2017A
REEBEBZRE: HK$0.187% 7t HK$0.1267% 7T
B ME - Call R 8% Call 7R
o [ g ) 2% 0.59% 1.49%
REARHE 2 TEHAFHA 5 years 5 years &
SEEENA R 65% 61%
TREARR Bl as = - 0% 0%
TR IEE: 2.4 2.4

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility
of the Company’s share prices. Expected dividends were
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value

T8 HR0E T AR R B 0 (B 18 2 3B 1 K &)
REE-FFHREBNBERSEA/EE - TH
BWABBRRNEES 7

ERKEATE

o

B Et AT

estimate.
Note 1: Adjusted for share consolidation effective from 18 Wet1: E—ZE——FhLA+NBERZRE
September 2012. DEHIEH TR
33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. MBATZH¥S
Particulars regarding the subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 R-ZZE—-NEFE=A=+—H WBAFZ
are as follows: FE =g (I NS
Attributable

Place of Issued and equity interests

incorporation/ fully paid held by the Company

operation Type of share capital VNN Principal
Name of subsidiaries SMmAYL/ legal entity BETR itz RAER activities
WEAREE EEMY EEERESR BRRE Directly  Indirectly FEZHK

E# EikE
% %
Art Aim Limited Hong Kaong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Mavie
HEERNA £ company 1T production
BREERAA YR
Billion Success Corporation  Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Licensing
Limited EE company 1T business
ERBERAA BREERA RHERD
Bingo Cinema Investment ~ Hong Kong Limited liability ~ HK$10,000 - 70 Cinema
Company Limited £ company 10,000% 1t investment

HREYRREBRAF BREERA FhRERE
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33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

33. MEATZERE(E)

Attributable
Place of Issued and equity interests
incorporation/ fully paid held by the Company
operation Type of share capital VNG| Principal
Name of subsidiaries SMRL/ legal entity BETK Eiz RAER activities
WELRAR EEHE LEERER BERAE Directly  Indirectly TE#%H
E# &
% %
Bingo Cinema Management Hong Kong Limited liability ~ HK$10,000 - 70 Cinema
Company Limited B0 company 10,000% ¢ management
HREXREBERAA BREERA ThER
Bingo Management Services Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Management
Limited Bk company 18T services
tREERBERAF AREERA BIRRG
Bingo Movie Development  Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$1 100 - Movie
Limited 30 company BT production
HEEFERBRAR BREERA BYRIE
Bingo Trademark Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Dormant
HEEEERAR BB company 18T EmER
BREERA
Brillant Tech Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 70  Cinema
KEARDA A% company 15T management
AREERA ThER
China Cultural Industry Cayman Islands Limited liability Us$100 - 100  Dormant
Investment Fund HERE company 100% 7T Tmex
PEXLEXREES BREERA
Easybuild Assets BVI Limited liability Us$1 100 - Investment
Management REBRAES company 1% holding
Limited BREERA REER
HEEEERERAR
EmCall Pte Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 - 100  Dormant
HHRARRNF BE company 108 TmeY
AREERA

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. MBATFZHE (&)

Attributable
Place of Issued and equity interests
incorporation/ fully paid held by the Company
operation Type of share capital NN Principal
Name of subsidiaries SMAYL/ legal entity BRTR EizRAER activities
i) NGRS =S EEERER BRRE Directly Indirectly ~ER%H
B &
% %
Emcom (HK) Pte Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 100 - Investment
FEEA (BE)BRRA  BE company 10T holding
BREERAA REER
Gi Space Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Dormant
A% company 187 Emex
BAREERA
Harvest Yield Investments ~ BVI Limited liability Usg2 100 - Dormant
Limited EERUES company 2ETT Emex
BREMERAA
Huge Art Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$1 100 - Cartoon
ZEFR AT o company 1T production
BREMERAA RRRIE
Lofty Gain Investments BVI Limited liability Us$1 100 - Movie
Limited EERTHES company (E production
HBREFRAF BREERA BYRIE
Lofty Shine Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Investment
BEBRAT EBELEE company (E holding
BREERA RERK
New Harvest Trading BVI Limited liability HKS$1 100 - Dormant
Limited EBELHE company 1AL Tmes
MEBEHBERRA BREERAA
Power Alliance Investment ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Dormant
Limited e company 1871 Emex
BERERRRA BAREERA
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2017/18



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

33. MEATZERE(E)

Attributable
Place of Issued and equity interests
incorporation/ fully paid held by the Company
operation Type of share capital ARNH Principal
Name of subsidiaries HMKL legal entity BRTR itz R AR activities
)= NGRS ExuM EEERES BRRE Directly ~Indirectly ERXH
E# &
% %
Sinotrans Resources BVI Limited liability Us$1 100 - Dormant
Limited EERTHES company (E EmER
ERERARAF AREERA
High Amuse Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 - - Licensing
EBERRA EBELFE company (E50 (2017: business
AREFRF 100%) RIEZES
Bingo Animation Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - - Cartoon
LREBEERAA BE company BT (2017 production
AREERA 100%) Ti@sE
Raxco Assets Corp BVI Limited liability ~ US$62,720 - - Licensing
EBRUHE company 62,720% T (2017: business
AREFERA 100%) HFEER
Shanghai Bingo Interactive ~ PRC Limited liability ~ US$2.642m - - New Media
Information Technology company  2,642,000% 7T (2017:  Exploitations
Co, Ltd. BREAAR 100%)  business
TEEREDEERRAR MRBHEEHR
NGl
FERMEREREN PRC Limited liability ~ US$100,000 - 70 Cinema
BRAR* H company 100,000% ¢ management
AREFERA ThER
B5 (L8 REAS PRC Limited liabilty ~ US$500,000 - 70 Cinema
BARAR* H company 500,000% T investment
AREFERA ThiRE
LEBREREAERARF  PRC Limited liability RMB100,000 - 70 Cinema
H company AR investment
BEREMERAA 100,0007t FhiRE

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. MBATFZHE (&)

Attributable
Place of Issued and equity interests
incorporation/ fully paid held by the Company
operation Type of share capital VNG| Principal
Name of subsidiaries SMRL/ legal entity BETK Eiz RAER activities
WELRAR EEHE LEERER BERAE Directly  Indirectly TE#%H
E# Cik
% %
teEFh (L8)ERAS PRC Limited liability RMBBm - 52.5 Cinema business
HE company AR ThEK
EREMAR 6,000,000
EZhenEFRERAT PRC Limited liability - RMB500,000 - 52.5 Cinema business
H company ARE FhRER
BREEDH 500,000 7t
MR EFREBRAT PRC Limited liability - RMB500,000 - 52.5 Cinema business
R company AR A3
BREFAF 500,000 7t
AEERER ORI AR PRC Limited liability RMB100,000 - 100  Dormant
N HE company AR® Tmex
BREELDH 100,000 7

* Wholly owned foreign enterprises (WOFE) registered under

PRC law.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. MEBABZHE (8)
The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned TRINTEBEAFIERERS 2 AEBSE
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling 2EMBARZFE:
interests:
Place of

incorporation Proportion of ownership

and principal interests and voting
place of rights held by
business non-controlling interests Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary SMRLBER FEREREE2AEERER  noncontrolling interests  non-controlling interests
WEAREM IRERBE SHELLA FEREREEES it K ERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\F —Z+E  ZEB-N\f C"T-+5 ZB-N\Ff _ZT{F
HK$'000 HK$000 = HK$000 HK$000
TAL ThT TEL TAL
tEEYh (L8 BRAA fEEFR (L§)FRAR PRC 47.5% 47.5% (124) (249) 16,992 16,565

Individually immaterial subsidiaries 75 JEE k8% 2 i
with non-controlling interests (ERIEIENGIEVNG

(5,762) (4,370)

11,230 12,195

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the Year ended 31 March 2018
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33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. MEBLABZHE(8)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s TREYEEEEEAFIERERSZAE
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set MEARZMBERBZE - T BE
out below. The summarized financial information below K ZEE BN & A RIHE Y AT < &5 o

represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.

2018 2017
—B-NF —TtF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
Ltk EER (L8 BRAA F&T FHET
Non-current assets EMENEE 11,713 20,807
Current assets MENEE 35,891 62,311
Current liabilities mEAE (11,831) (48,244)
Turnover BT 46,929 44,770
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
tkmEER (L8)BRAA FET T T
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AFEEEEWE (BE)BE
for the year 4,017 (524)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KESEE (AT, A
operating activities HeF8 (31,545) 1,387
Net cash generated from investing REEDRAEZHREIFRE
activities 251 390
Net cash generated from financing BEEEMF 2R FE
activities - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2018
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. HEMBELTF

On 6 December 2017, the Company and The Star
Overseas Limited, which is wholly owned by Ms. Chow
Man Ki Kelly, an executive director of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to
that agreement, the Company agreed to sell and The Star
Overseas Limited agreed to acquire 100% equity of High
Amuse Limited at a consideration of HK$500,000 plus
the amount equivalent to the aggregate bank balance of
High Amuse Limited and its subsidiaries upon completion,
which is approximately HK$250,000. The disposal has
been completed on 18 December 2017, on which date
the control of High Amuse Limited was passed to The Star
Overseas Limited.

The aggregate amounts of the assets and liabilities
attributable to the subsidiaries on the date of disposal
were as follow:

RIEB—+F+-_ARNA RARAEHEE
BINER AR (BAARRAMITE R REAXE
LEt2EHB)TL-HEEHH - REZ
Wt ARARIRBHEMEEBINERA
AR B KRB EH AR LD AI100% KH#E K
{E/R500,0008 T EHEEREHBERLD
AIREMBRARRTREARITHERNS
# - B4 "250,000#8 - HEFHE R
—E-tEFt+ATNAEK MEHE
RAFINEGIETENE IEBREEES
SNERR AT

WEBARREEBEHEENEEREBER
BT

HK$’'000
FER
Net assets disposed of: EHEZEEFE:
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBELFEDY 250
Trade receivables JE U5 BR 5% 63
Other receivables and prepayments Ho A 8 Y R IE K TR AN OB 78
Trade payables J& - BR 3K (176)
Other payables and accruals B fth S F0B K BT FOB (2,358)
(2,143)
Less: Minority interest DB R R (18)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange ZitEH ZHAELREENTDEEER
difference from exchange reserve to
profit or loss 515
(1,646)
Amount due to the Company disposed of EHERNARARRIE 250
Gain on disposal H s Wz 2,146
Consideration RE 750
Satisfy by: ATBN AT
Cash Re 750

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. HERBLATE (8)
The subsidiaries disposed of during the year did not FRAEENMBARTEEN —FRIL
contribute significantly to the results and cash flows of the EAREENEERRERETREKRE
Group during the year prior to the disposal. Bk o
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FRALEWNBARINRE RREEEYR
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follow: NRBOMT
HK$’000
FTET
Cash consideration ReERE 750
Cash and bank balances disposed of Tt & 2B e MIRTTHES (250)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in ~ BRLEWNBRAFMNRERREFEWRA
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries HEE 500
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BE-FT—\FZA=+—HIFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

36.

35. AATFIMBRAERE

COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment E RN E T — -
Interests in subsidiaries NIEINGIPA 237,563 259,490
237,563 259,490
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hith R IE 1 e &
prepayments FERFRIA 160 664
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EY 26,092 7,976
26,252 8,640
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H it &5 5/ I8 I FE R TR IE 4,229 3,833
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE B B A B FRIE 145,979 145,807
150,208 149,640
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEETE (123,956) (141,000)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERABAE
LIABILITIES 113,607 118,490
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBAE
Convertible bonds A AR (& 25 20,783 17,617
NET ASSETS EEFE 92,824 100,873
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR
Share capital [N 136,861 136,861
Reserves & (44,037) (35,988)
TOTAL EQUITY FESBE 92,824 100,873
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 36. LEEBEBF

Certain comparative figures have been restated to
conform with current year’'s presentation.

ETHBRFEREIN UNHEAFEZ

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBGRE

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

AEERBEREVBRFEZXENEERRA

five financial years are as follows: (ECUNNE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F =—T—+tF ZT-XF ZT-HF ZT-WEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx FET FET FET FET
RESULTS *i&
Turnover EHER 47,877 45,230 74,774 76,961 80,447
Loss before taxation BRI ATEE (10,542) (58,619) (44,745) (60,137) (50,470)
Taxation TRIA (846) (1,001) (2,143) (2,839) (3,376)
Loss before HIBR FEVR AR 2 BT
non-controlling interests &8 (11,388) (59,616) (46,888) (62,976) (53,846)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M A 846 (523) (2,458) (2,971 (5,618)
Loss attributable to owners N2 R #EA A EG
of the Company &8 (10,542) (60,139) (49,346) (65,947) (59,464)
Loss per share BiEB
— Basic (cents) — EAR GBI (0.31) (1.76) (1.46) (2.086) (1.94)
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\Fg —T—+tF ZT-XF ZT-HF ZT-WEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx FiET FiET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Total assets EERE 145,884 196,781 227,530 238,468 238,506
Total liabilities BERHE (41,056) (84,533) (88,882) (95,273) (100,181)
Non-controlling interests B S 11,230 12,195 11,773 9,440 5,102
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